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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17 (2)(b) THEREUNDER

=

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2011

2. SEC Identification Number 311713. BIR Tax Identification No. 000-168-801

4, Exact name of registrant as specified in itgtehaPETRON CORPORATION

5. Philippines 6. I:I (SEC Use Only)
Province, Country or other Industry Classification Code:

jurisdiction of incorporation or
organization

7. SMC Head Office Complex, 40 San Miguel Avenue, Maagong City, 1550
Address of principal office

8. (0632) 886-3888
Registrant's telephone number, including area code

9. N/A

(Former name, former address, and former fiscat,yechanged since last
report.)

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sectionsi8larof the SRC or Sections 4 and 8

of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Share€ofmmon Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding

Common Stock 9,375,104,49 afls

Preferred Stock 100,000,000 Shares

Total Liabilities P111,676 million




11.  Are any or all of these securities lisbecthe Philippine Stock Exchange.

Yes [X] No [ ]
If yes, state the name of such stockarge and the classes of securities listed
therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange Command Preferred
Stocks

12. Indicate by check mark whether the Regdtr

() has filed all reports required to be filed by $mttl7 of the Code and SRC
Rule 17 thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and Rale 11 (a)-1
thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of the CoiparaCode of the
Philippines, during the preceding 12 months (or doch shorter period the
registrant was required to file such reports).

Yes [X] No [ ]
(b) has been subject to such filing requirements ferpist 90 days.

Yes|[ ] No [ X]
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FETRON CORFORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SEPFTEMEER 30, 2011 and DECEMBER 1. 2010

(Amounts [n Milllon Pesos)
September 3o, 2011 December 21, 2010
— Move Onauadited Audited
ASSETS
Current Assels
Cazh and cash equivaients rnr2 P 0,399 P 43.504
Finamclal assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss FLE2 323 237
Available-for-saie financial assets 1,12 - 178
Trade and other receivables - net 11,12 16,003 24,266
Inventorles 47088 28.14%
Cther current assets 7085 4. 286
100,898 101,086
Aszers held [orsale 5 10 823
Total CurTent Assets 100,908 101,909
Non-Corrent Assets
Property, plant and equipment - net 4 42,978 14,957
Investment [in associates 2 1,325 Eny
Investment properiles a1y 119
Available-for-zale financial assets 14,12 1,034 983
Delerred tax assets 2 170 28
Other noncurrent assets In,r2 23,719 13,016
Total Noncurrent Assets 7O.053 So.907
Total Assets | 170,61 P 161, BL6
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Short<tecm loans 1,52 F 35.502 P 32457
Liabilities for crude oil and petrolenm
product importation 1512 21,872 11,154
Trade and other payvables Iz 7an T
Drerivative liabilities 15,12 a7 30
Current portion of lang-term debi - net 151z 1698 11,517
Incorme tax payahle 53z 14
Total Current Liabilities 67,491 £1,956
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of current portion 132 40,584 42885
Betirement benefits liability 245 49
Deferred tax Habillties . 1L.772 1.558
Asget retirement obligation B7E g1t
Other noncurcent liabilities 12 Foz 4%
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 44.185 46.516
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock 9.475 4TS
Additional paid-in capital 9,764 9,764
Retzined earnings 39678 33.748
Other reserves 74 83
_Total Equity Attribatable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company 58,991 53070
Non-controdling interest 254 274
Total Equity 59,285 53344
Total Liabilitles & Eguity P 170,961 i3 161,816
Nowee B pe e mpanen ng Manisgersd n Araiyes e ol n
Certified by: =
EFRE GABRILLD
Assistant Vice ident - Controllers



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

. PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
FORTHE PERIOD ENDED SEFTEMBER 20, 2011 and 2010

PETRON [Amounts in Milllon Pesos, Except Per Share Amounts)
(UNAUDITED)
July to September January to September
Nate 2011 2010 2011 2010
SALES el 67,832 Gadas P oamgag P oasggd
COST OF GOODS SOLD 62,601 5612 1B3,638 156,474
GROSS PROFIT 4,431 3,832 18,291 13,319
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES {2,108) {1.575) {5277} (4214
INTEREST INCOME 109 257 1,007 410
INTEREST EXFENSE (1.256) {1051} (3.879) {2.922)
SHARE IN NET LOS5 OF AN ASSOCIATE (88) X (16g)
OTHER INCOME {CHARGES) - net 750 g5 4o ARy
INCOME BEFORE INCOMETAY 1,061 2,388 10,013 7071
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 507 581 1513 1714
NET INCOME P oa555 P 1By P J600 P47
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent company F 1,551 1,748 7581 P o0
Non-controlling interest 3 9 19 27

F 1,555 P 1.Bo7 ¥ 7500 P 5147

BASIC DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE ATTRIBUTAELE
TOEQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY - P 0,14 0,17 P 0.7% P 00,52

Rabe Sezastompanying Manegernent Disoession whd Anabpes and Selected §aotes o Consolldated Finamelal Siarements.

Cersified by:

EFREN F: RILLO
Assistant Vice Predtdent - Controllers



PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
— FORTHE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010

NET INCOME

NET GAIN (LOSS) ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS - NET OF TAX

EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON TRANSLATION
OF FOREIGN OPERATIONS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVEINCOME- NET OF TAX
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Comprehensive Income Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling Interest

Note: See accompanying Management Discussion and Analysis and Selected Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements.

EFREN lf:ﬁBRILLO

Assistant Vice President-Controllers

Certified by:

(Amounts in Million Pesos)
(UNAUDITED)

July to September January to September

2011 2011 2010
P 1,555 P 2,387 P 7.600 P 5347
1 - (0) -
(13) 26 @ 42
(12) 26 @) 42
P 1,543 B 2,413 P 7,593 P 5,389
P 1,538 P 2,404 P 7573 P 5362
5 9 20 27
P 1,543 P 2,413 P 7,593 P 5,389




PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010
(Amounts in Million Pesos)

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

Retained Earnings
Additional

Preferred Common paid-in Appro- Unappro- Other controlling Total

Stock Stock capital priated priated Reserves Tatal Equity
Balance at January 1, 2011 (Audited) P w0 P 9375 P 9764 P 15554 P 18194 P 8 P 53070 P 274 P 53,344
Total comprehensive income 7,582 (9) 7,573 20 7.593
Appropriation for capital projects 9.627 (9.627) = =
Cash dividends (Wote8) (1,652) (1,652) (1,652)
Balance at September 30, 2011 (Unaudited) P 100 P 93755 P 9764 P 35181 P 14497 P 74 P Bgo1 P 294 P 59,285
Balance at January 1, 2010 (Audited) ) % P 15492 P 12522 (P 98) P 37291 P 244 P 37535
Total comprehensive income 5.320 42 5,362 27 5.389
Cash dividends (Note &) (1.414) (1,414) (1.414)
Issuance of shares 100 9,764 9,864 9.864
Balance at September 30, 2010 (Unaudited) P 100 P 9375 P 9764 P 15492 P 16428 (P 56) P 51,103 P 271 P 51,374

Note: See accompanying Management Discussion and Analysis and Selected Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Certified by:
EFREN J. GABRILLO
Assistant Vice President-Controllers



PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE PERIOD ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2051 and zo10

T {Amounnts in Milllon Pesos)
(UNAUDITED)

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES 2011 2010
Income before income tax P 10,113 P 7070
Adjustments for:

Share in net foss of an associate 165

Depreciation and amertization 27085 2,485

Inlerest expense 1.B79 2,922

Interest income {1,007) {a19)

Net unrealized forelgn exchange gain 171 (a72)

Dthers [5e) (9]
Operating income before working capital changes 15861 11,382
Changes In operating assets and labllities
Decreasze (Increase) in assets:

Receivables {z.081) 475

Inventories {18,543) (3.849)

Other current assets {1.503) (v,460)
Increase (decrease) Ln Habiiities:

Liablilities for crude ofl and petrolenm

product importation 10,446 16,844

Accounts pavable and accrued expenses 360 94
Provistons for doubrful saccounts, inventory ehsolescence and others 54 {132)
Interest paid {2.553) (2,40%)
Income taxes pald (5200 {73)
Interest received 1,038 415

Net cash flows provided by (used in} operating activities (541) 20,691

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additlons to;

Property, plant and equipment (10:635) (2,659)

Investment properties (o) (7ea)
Decrease (Increase) inc

Other recelvables [329) [2,479)

Other noncurrent assets 316 52
Reductions from (additions to):

Fimancial aszets at fair value through proflt or loss {104} o

Available-for-sale investments 127 198

Investments {1.734) [24,143)

Hetcash flows used in investing activities {13.057) [29.500)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Avallment of loans 554031 145,539
Paymentsof:

Loans (53445} (ra2.079)
Cash dividends {1,640} (L,365)
Issuance of Preferred Stock - 9,364
Cthers 107 76
Ket cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities (9.947) 11,935
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6 (51)
NET INCREASE (DECREEASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (z3.5835) /065
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 43,984 12,9685
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD F 10,399 P 16,050

Hote! See eccompanying Mansgement Discussion and Analysls and Selected ¥otes to
Conselidated Flnanclal Statements.

Certiffed by
EFRE ABRILLO
Assistant Vice President - Controllers

-10 -



PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SELECTED NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS
(Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Data)

. Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reprting Policies

Petron Corporation and Subsidiaries (collectivelfierred to as the “Group”) prepared
its consolidated interim financial statements aaraf for the period ended September
30, 2011 and comparative financial statementshiersame period in 2010 following
the new presentation rules under Philippine AcdognStandard (PAS) No. 34,
Interim Financial Reporting. The consolidated fioial statements of the Group have
been prepared in compliance with Philippine FinahRieporting Standards (PFRS).

The consolidated financial statements are presant&tilippine peso and all values
are rounded to the nearest million (R000,000)epkehen otherwise indicated.

The principal accounting policies and methods aebph preparing the interim
consolidated financial statements of the Grouptlaeesame as those followed in the
most recent annual audited financial statements.

Adoption of New Standards, Amendments to Standandsinterpretations

The Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSQ)reyed the adoption of a
number of new or revised standards, amendmentsatmlards, and interpretations
[based on International Financial Reporting Intetation Committee (IFRIC)

Interpretations] as part of PFRS.

Amendments to Standard and Interpretations Adoipt@@11
Starting January 1, 2011, the Group adopted thewolg PFRS:

= Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (Amends to Philippine
Interpretation IFRIC 14: PAS 19 — The Limit on afiDed Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interactioiihese amendments
remove unintended consequences arising from thetment of prepayments
where there is a minimum funding requirement arglltein prepayments of
contributions in certain circumstances being recxaghas an asset rather than an
expense. The amendments are effective for annuaddpbeginning on or after
January 1, 2011.

» Revised PAS 24Related Party Disclosures (200299mends the definition of a
related party and modifies certain related partgcldsure requirements for
government-related entities. The revised standareffective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2011.

-11 -



= Improvements to PFRS2010 contain 11 amendments to 6 standards and 1
interpretation, of which only the following are digpble to the Group:

o PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statemenhe amendments clarify that
disaggregation of changes in each component oftyeqaiising from
transactions recognized in other comprehensivemacalso is required to be
presented either in the statement of changes ityequin the notes. The
amendments are effective for annual periods begghan or after January 1,
2011.

o PAS 27,Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemefte amendments
clarify that the consequential amendments to PASTRB& Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange RateRAS 28,Investment in Associateand PAS 31,
Interest in Joint Venturegesulting from PAS 27 (2008) should be applied
prospectively, with the exception of amendmentsltiegy from renumbering.
The amendments are effective for annual periodsbety on or after July 1,
2010.

o0 PAS 34,Interim Financial ReportingThe amendments add examples to the
list of events or transactions that require diastesunder PAS 34 and remove
references to materiality in PAS 34 that descrité&r minimum disclosures.
The amendments are effective for annual periodsnhegy on or after
January 1, 2011.

0 PFRS 1First-time Adoption of PFRS3he amendments: (i) clarify that PAS 8
is not applicable to changes in accounting policesurring during the period
covered by an entity’s first PFRS financial statatag(ii) introduce guidance
for entities that publish interim financial infortien under PAS 34interim
Financial Reportingand change either their accounting policies or afséhe
PFRS 1 exemptions during the period covered by timsit PFRS financial
statements; (iii) extend the scope of paragraplroDBFRS 1 so that an entity
Is permitted to use an event-driven fair value mesment as deemed cost for
some or all of its assets when such revaluatiomroed during the reporting
periods covered by its first PFRS financial statetsieand (iv) introduce an
additional optional deemed cost exemption for mE#ito use the carrying
amounts under previous GAAP as deemed cost at dtee af transition to
PFRSs for items of property, plant and equipmenhtangible assets used in
certain rate-regulated activities. The amendmemés effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011.

-12 -



o0 PFRS 3Business Combinationdhe amendments: (i) clarify that contingent
consideration arising in a business combinatiorviptesly accounted for in
accordance with PFRS 3 (2004) that remains outstgrat the adoption date
of PFRS 3 (2008) continues to be accounted forcocomance with PFRS 3
(2004); (i) limit the accounting policy choice tmeasure non-controlling
interests upon initial recognition at fair value at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’sniifiable net assets to
instruments that give rise to a present ownershiprést and that currently
entitle the holder to a share of net assets inetrent of liquidation; (iii)
expand the current guidance on the attributiorhefrharket-based measure of
an acquirer's share-based payment awards issuekdnange for acquiree
awards between consideration transferred and posbination compensation
cost when an acquirer is obliged to replace theliaeg's existing awards to
encompass voluntarily replaced unexpired acquivesds. These amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on ¢erajuly 1, 2010.

0o PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: DisclosureIhe amendments add an explicit
statement that qualitative disclosure should be enadthe context of the
quantitative disclosures to better enable useevétuate the entity’s exposure
to risks arising from financial instruments. In #oth, the IASB amended and
removed existing disclosure requirements. The amends are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 11201

o Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13Customer Loyalty ProgrammesThe
amendments clarify that the fair value of awardditeetakes into account the
amount of discounts or incentives that otherwiseldde offered to customers
that have not earned the award credits. The amamdnae effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 11201

= Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instrumentsaddresses issues in respect of the accountiniyebgtebtor in
a debt for equity swap transaction. It clarifieattequity instruments issued to a
creditor to extinguish all or part of the financi@bility in a debt for equity swap
are consideration paid in accordance with PAS 39agraph 41. The
interpretation is applicable for annual period begiag on or after July 1, 2010.

The adoption of these foregoing new or reviseddaeds, amendments to standards
and Philippine Interpretations of IFRIC did not kaar material effect on the interim

-13 -



consolidated financial statements.

New or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standadidnéerpretations Not Yet

Adopted

The Group will adopt the following new or revisethrglards, amendments to
standards and interpretations in the respectiect¥e dates:

Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets (Amesisito PFRS 7)require
additional disclosures about transfers of finanasdets. The amendments require
disclosure of information that enables users ddritial statements to understand
the relationship between transferred financial @s®t are not derecognized in
their entirety and the associated liabilities; &ameévaluate the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’s continuing involvermém derecognized financial
assets. Entities are required to apply the amentimér annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2011.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements fthre Construction of Real
Estate applies to the accounting for revenue and astsutiexpenses by entities
that undertake the construction of real estatectlyr@r through subcontractors. It
provides guidance on the recognition of revenueragnmeal estate developers for
sales of units, such as apartments or housespiaff’; i.e., before construction is
completed. It also provides guidance on how tordatee whether an agreement
for the construction of real estate is within tleege of PAS 11Construction
Contracts or PAS 18,Revenug and the timing of revenue recognition. The
interpretation is effective for annual periods legng on or after January 1,
2012.

The Group will assess the impact of the new orsexvistandards, amendments to
standards and interpretations on the consolidateshdial statements upon adoption
on their respective effective dates.

PFRS 9Financial Instrument$2009) was issued as the first phase of the PAS 39
replacement project. The chapters of the standdeadsed in 2009 only related to
classification and measurement of financial asdeERS 9 (2009) retains but
simplifies the mixed measurement model and estadistwo primary
measurement categories for financial assets: aredritost and fair value. The

-14 -



basis of classification depends on the entity’sress model and contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. In @ber 2010, a new version of
PFRS 9,Financial Instrumentg2010) was issued which now includes all the
requirements of PFRS 9 (2009) without amendmeng. Agw version of PFRS 9
also incorporates requirements with respect tackhssification and measurement
of financial liabilities and the derecognition ahdncial assets and financial
liabilities. The guidance in PAS 39 on impairmehtfinancial assets and hedge
accounting continues to apply. The new standamffective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013. PFRS 9 (p8dpersedes PFRS 9 (2009).
However, for annual periods beginning before Jandar2013, an entity may
elect to apply PFRS 9 (2009) rather than PFRS 2QR0

The Group has decided not to early adopt eitherPgR2009) or PFRS 9 (2010) for
its 2011 annual financial reporting. The Groupllsbenduct in early 2012 another
impact evaluation using the outstanding balancesfaBecember 31, 2011. The
Group’s decision whether to early adopt eitherRB® (2009) or PFRS 9 (2010) for
the 2012 financial reporting shall be disclosedthie Group’s interim financial
statements as of March 31, 2012.

. Segment Information

Management identifies segments based on businesgemgraphic locations. These
operating segments are monitored and strategisidasi are made on the basis of
adjusted segment operating results. The CEO (thef operating decision maker)
reviews management reports on a regular basis.

The Group’s major sources of revenues are as fetlow

a. Sales of petroleum and other related products wimclude gasoline, diesel and
kerosene offered to motorists and public transppsdrators through its service
station network around the country.

b. Insurance premiums from the business and operafiatl kinds of insurance and
reinsurance, on sea as well as on land, of pr@serjoods and merchandise, of
transportation or conveyance, against fire, eadkgu marine perils, accidents
and all others forms and lines of insurance autlkedriby law, except life
insurance.

c. Lease of acquired real estate properties for pmiro| refining, storage and
distribution facilities, gasoline service statiargl other related structures.

-15 -



d. Sales on wholesale or retail and operation of senatations, retail outlets,
restaurants, and the like.

e. Export sales of various petroleum and non-fuel potelto other Asian countries
such as South Korea, Taiwan, China, Thailand, ledian Singapore, Cambodia,
Japan, India, UAE, Pakistan and Malaysia.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets usadgbgment and consist principally
of operating cash, receivables, inventories, amggnty, plant and equipment, net of
allowances and impairment. Segment liabilities udel all operating liabilities and
consist principally of accounts payable, wagesesagurrently payable and accrued
liabilities. Segment assets and liabilities doinotude deferred taxes.

Inter-segment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and performance insdle® and purchases between
operating segments. Transfer prices between opgraigments are set on an arm’s
length basis in a manner similar to transactiorth Wiird parties. Such transfers are
eliminated in consolidation.

The following tables present revenue and incomermétion and certain asset and
liability information regarding the business segitsess of September 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010 and for the nine months endete®éer 30, 2011 and 2010.

Segment assets and liabilities exclude deferredsagts and deferred tax liabilities:

Petroleum Insurance Leasing Marketing Elimination Total
Period Ended Sept. 30,
2011
Revenue
External Sales P200,702 P - P - P1,227 P - P201,929
Inter-segment Sales 159,033 89 265 - (159,387) -
Segment results 12,588 70 123 65 268 13,114
Net income 7,581 120 32 75 (208)
As of Sept. 30, 2011
Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 190,536 1,877 3,437 832 (25,891) 170,791
Segment liabilities 131,297 243 2,497 161 (24,294) 109,904
Other segment information
Property, plant and
equipment 39,495 - - 216 3,267 42,978
Depreciation and
amortization 2,676 - - 29 - 2,705
Period Ended Sept. 30,
2010
Revenue
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External Sales P166,434 P - P - P3,364 P - P169,798

Inter-segment Sales 2,354 107 247 - (2,708) -
Segment results 8,459 89 128 122 107 8,905
Net income 5,075 132 44 120 (24) 5,347

As of Dec. 31, 2010
Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 163,823 2,086 2,935 1,097 (8,153) 1,78%
Segment liabilities 108,665 559 2,027 303 (5,040) 06,214
Other segment information
Property, plant and

equipment 31,753 - 1 379 2,824 34,957
Depreciation and
amortization 3,419 - - 65 (1) 3,483

The following tables present additional informatiem the petroleum business
segment as of

September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and frnithe months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010:

Retail Lube Gasul Industrial Others Total

Property, plant and

equipment
As of September 30, 2011 P4,990 P293 pP211 P73 P33,921 P39,488
As of December 31, 2010 4,524 345 181 43 26,660 7531,
Capital Expenditures
As of September 30, 2011 P492 P- P44 P6 P11,880 P12,422
As of December 31, 2010 169 1 8 2 2,615 2,795
Revenue
Period ended Sept. 30, 2011 P79,885 P1,855 P14,668 P78,187 P26,822 P201,417
Period ended Sept. 30, 2010 67,632 1,594 10,855 74B9, 18,964 168,787

Geographical Segments

The following table presents revenue informatiorgareing the geographical
segments of th&roup for the nine months ended September 30, 28d12010.

Petroleum Insurance Leasing Marketing Elimination Total

Period ended
September 30, 2011
Revenue
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Local P181,085 P56 P265 P1,227 (P1,742) P180,891
Export/International 178,650 33 - - (157,645) 21,038

Period ended
September 30, 2010

Revenue
Local P154,830 P63 P247 P3,364 (P2,708) P155,796
Export/International 13,958 44 - - 14,002

3. Related Party Transactions

Lease Agreement

On September 30, 2009, New Ventures Realty Conporantered into a 25-year
lease with the Philippine National Oil Company (PB)Owithout rent-free period,
covering a property which shall be used for reffn@ommencing January 1, 2010
and ending on December 31, 2039. The annual rehédll be P93 payable on the™5
day of January each year without the necessityeofaihd. This non-cancellable lease
is subject to renewal options and annual escalaianses of 3% per annum up to
2011. The leased premises shall be reappraisetihgt@&012 and every fifth year
thereafter in which the new rental rate shall bemheined equivalent to 5% of the
reappraised value, and still subject to annuallasoa clause of 3% for the four
years following the appraisal. Prior to this agreamPetron has an outstanding lease
agreement on the same property from PNOC. Alsof & ptember 30, 2011, Petron
leases other parcels of land from PNOC for its Ipléiats and service stations.

Transactions with Current Owners/Related Parties

a. Sales relate to the Parent Company’s supply agretsmagth various subsidiaries
of San Miguel Corporation (SMC). Under these agreas) the Parent Company
supplies the bunker, diesel fuel and lube requirdmef selected SMC plants and
subsidiaries.

b. Purchases relate to purchase of goods and serggel as construction,
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information technology and shipping.

. Petron entered into lease agreement with San Migugerties, Inc. (SMPI) for
its office space covering 6,759 square meters withonthly rate of P3.9. The
lease, which commenced on June 1, 2011, is foriacpef one year and maybe
renewed for a period in accordance with the writigreement of the parties.

. The Parent Company also pays SMC for its share@imnton expenses such as
utilities and administrative fees.

. The Parent Company has advances to Petron Coquotathployee Retirement
Plan (PCERP) amounting to P22,668 and P22,435 8epmtember 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively, included as plafOther noncurrent assets”
account.

. As of September 30, 2011, the Parent Company hasntueceivables of P172
and noncurrent receivables of P529 from Petrochamisia (HK) Limited
included as part of “Other current assets” and gDtioncurrent assets” accounts,

respectively.

The balances and transactions with related paase®sf September 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010 follows:

Revenue Purchases Amounts Amounts
from from owed by owed to
September 30, 2011 Relationship with Related Related Related Related
Related Parties Related parties Parties Parties Paes Parties
SMC Ultimate Parent P1 P56 P0.07 P3
Distileria Bago, Inc. Under common 374 - 131 -
control
San Miguel Brewery Inc. Under common 677 0.18 97 44
control
San Miguel Yamamura Under common 532 0.19 108 -
Packaging Corporation control
SMC Shipping and Under common 302 555 48 43
Lighterage Corporation control
Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. Under common 106 12 19 5
control
San Miguel Foods, Inc. Under common 229 0.02 31 -

control
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San Miguel Energy Under common 87 453 - 56
Corporation control
San Miguel Yamamura Under common 575 - 83 -
Asia Corporation control
Challenger Aero Air Under common 20 - 13 -
Corporation control
Mindanao Corrugated Under common 31 - 4 -
Fibreboard, Inc. control
San Miguel Purefoods Under common 125 2 40 1
Company, Inc. control
Archen Technologies, Inc. Under common 12 307 - 93
control
SMPI Under common - 40 29 -
control
Others Under common 27 55 16 12
control
P3,098 P1,480.39 P619.07 pP257
Revenue Purchases Amounts  Amounts
from from owed by owed to
December 31, 2010 Relationship with Related Related Related Related
Related Parties Related parties Parties Parties tiePar Parties
SMC Ultimate Parent P1 P29 P2 P33
PanAsia Energy Under common 8,045 - 1,428 -
Holdings, Inc. control
Distileria Bago, Inc. Under common 720 - 38 -
control
San Miguel Brewery Inc. Under common 573 0.60 100 -
control
San Miguel Yamamura Under common 350 - 51 -
Packaging Corporation control
SMC Shipping and Under common 304 407 46 13
Lighterage Corporation control
Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. Under common 169 0.30 58 -
control
San Miguel Foods, Inc. Under common 150 3 36 -
control
San Miguel Energy Under common 83 - 25 -
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Corporation

control

San Miguel Yamamura Under common 40 - 40
Asia Corporation control
Challenger Aero Air Under common 22 2 9
Corporation control
Mindanao Corrugated Under common 17 - 4
Fibreboard, Inc. control
San Miguel Purefoods Under common 14 4 -
Company, Inc. control
Archen Technologies, Inc. Under common 12 227 2
control
SMPI Under common - 63
control
San Miguel Paper Under common - - 49
Packaging Corporation control
Others Under common 12 39 5
control
P10,512 P774.90 P1,893

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of:

September 30, 2011

Additions and

Disposals and

January 1, 2011 Transfers  Reclassifications Sept. 30, 2011
Cost:
Buildings P8,055 P42 (P2) P8,095
Machinery & Equipment 5,816 (198) - 5,618
Refinery and Plant

Equipment 37,292 83 - 37,375
Service Stations and Other

Equipment 5,353 301 (8) 5,646
Transportation Equipment 519 63 (20) 562
Office Equipment,

Furniture & Fixtures 1,626 187 (62) 1,751
Land Improvements 4,332 430 - 4,762
Leasehold Improvements 194 12 - 206
Capital Projects in Progress 2,796 9,626 - 12,422

65,983 10,546 (92) 76,437
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Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings (3,714) (248) - (3,962)
Machinery & Equipment (3,907) (168) - (4,075)
Refinery and Plant

Equipment (16,552) (1,516) - (18,068)
Service Stations and Other

Equipment (3,756) (362) 6 (4,112)
Transportation Equipment (355) (38) 19 (374)
Office Equipment,

Furniture & Fixtures (1,373) (95) 48 (1,420)
Land Improvements (1,271) (27) - (1,298)
Leasehold Improvements (98) (52) - (150)

(31,026) (2,506) 73 (33,459)
Net Book Value P34,957 P8,040 (P19) P42,978

September 30, 2010

Additions and

Disposals and

January 1, 2010 Transfers Reclassifications  Sept. 30, 2010
Cost:
Buildings P9,545 P145 (P1,640) P8,050
Machinery & Equipment 5,191 99 (42) 5,248
Refinery and Plant

Equipment 36,802 419 - 37,221
Service Stations and Other

Equipment 4,070 631 22 4,723
Transportation Equipment 504 70 (63) 511
Office Equipment,

Furniture & Fixtures 1,522 53 (30) 1,545
Land Improvements 4,962 (733) - 4,229
Leasehold Improvements 82 8 2 92
Capital Projects in Progress 1,450 2,019 - 3,469

64,128 2,711 (1,751) 65,088
Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings (4,214) (349) 885 (3,678)
Machinery & Equipment (3,593) (190) (3,774)
Refinery and Plant

Equipment (14,439) (1,595) 5 (16,029)
Service Stations and Other

Equipment (3,383) (236) 1 (3,618)
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Transportation Equipment (364) (37) 47 (354)
Office Equipment,
Furniture & Fixtures (1,295) (83) 28 (1,350)
Land Improvements (1,231) (29) - (1,260)
Leasehold Improvements (32) (6) - (38)
(28,551) (2,525) 975 (30,101)
Net Book Value P35,577 P186 (P776) P34,987

Capital Commitments
As of September 30, 2011, and December 31, 2010Gitweip has outstanding
commitments to acquire property, plant and equignamnounting to P3,864 and
P1,142, respectively.

. Assets Held for Sale

Petron has an investment property consisting ateffinits located at Petron Mega
Plaza which has a floor area of 21,216 square seterering the 28th - 44th floors
and 206 parking lots. On December 1, 2010, Pedr@oard of Directors (BOD)
approved the sale of these properties to provida daws for various projects. On
May 2, 2011, the Parent company sold th& #or (with total floor area of 1,530
square meters) and 10 parking lots to the IntesnatiCommittee of the Red Cross
with a total book value of P57. On September 20Llwas reverted back to
“Investment Property” account in view of the fabiat the remaining floors have
already been tenanted. As of September 30, 20&lcarrying amount of assets-
held-for-sale dropped to P10 from P823 in Decen2ba®.

Fuel Supply Contract

The Parent Compamgntered into various fuel supply contracts with Ha#l Power
Corporation (NPC). Under the agreements, the P&empany supplies the bunker
and diesel fuel oil requirements of NPC, its Indegent Power Producers (IPP) and
Small Power Utility Groups (SPUG) power plants/esrg For the nine months ended
September 30, 2011, the following are the fuel suppntracts granted to Petron:

Date of IFO** IFO DFO** DFO

Bid Date Award Contract Duration (in KL**) (Amount) | (in KL) | (Amount)

Jan 12, 2011 Jan 31, 2011 Jan to Dec 2011 44,587 P1,127 15,192 490 P
Mar 10, 2011 Mar 23, 2011 Apr to Jun 2011 4,833 140 9,560 373
Jun 17,2011 Jul 8, 2011 Jul to Dec 2011 87,000 3,074

Jul 1, 2011 Jul 6, 2011 Jul to Aug 2011 1,326 48 792, 121

Jul 18, 2011 Jul 25, 2011 Jul to Aug 2011 1,61 71
Aug 26, 2011 Aug 26, 2011 Apr to Jun 2011 1,297 35 569 22
Sep 5,2011 Sep 20, 201 Sep to Dec 2011 5,709 192,913 980
Sep 15, 2011l Sep 16, 2011 Sep to Dec 2011 9p0 36
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** |[FO = Industrial Fuel Oil
DFO = Diesel Fuel Oil
KL = Kilo Liters

7. Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts ®mnihe months ended September
30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Net income attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company P7,581 P5,320
Dividends on preferred shares for the period 714 476
Net income attributable to common shareholders
of Parent Company P6,867 P4,844
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding (in millions) 9,375 9,375
Basic/diluted earnings per common share P0.73 P0.52

As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Group haslilntive debt or equity
instruments.

8. Dividends

Cash dividends declared by the Parent Company’s B@bBommon shareholders
amounted to P0.10 per share as of September 30,@®@12010.

While cash dividends declared by the Parent ConipaBOD to preferred
stockholders amounted to P7.146 per share as ¢éi@bpr 30, 2011 and P4.764 per
share as of September 30, 2010.

9. Investment in an Associate

On January 3, 2011, Petron entered into a Shaeeda Purchase Agreement with
Harbour Centre Port Terminal, Inc. for the purchet85% of the outstanding and
issued capital stock of Manila North Harbour Pad.|

10. Commitments and Contingencies
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Unused Letters of Credit and Outstanding Standby L#ers of Credit

Petron has unused letters of credit amounting pragimately P13 as of September
30, 2011 and P532 as of December 31, 2010. Oathiee hand, outstanding standby
letters of credit for crude importations amounted R18,272 and P8,704 as of
September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, resplgctiv

Tax Credit Certificates Related Cases

In 1998, Petron contested before the Court of Tgppeals (CTA), the
collection by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BtRyleficiency taxes arising
from the company’s acceptance and use of Tax Creditificates (TCCs)
worth P659 million from 1993-1997. The CTA ruledfavor of Petron. The
BIR then appealed the case to the Court of App&lg after which the CA
issued a resolution suspending decision on thewasddhe termination of the
Department of Finance (DOF) investigation. Petraledf a motion for

reconsideration which remains pending at the moment

In May 2002, the BIR issued a collection letter @@ficiency taxes of P254
million plus interest and charges for the years5t9998, as a result of the
cancellation of the Tax Debit Memos and TCCs by@ia@F Center ExCom.
Petron elevated the protest to the CTA. The Sedandion CTA denied
Petron’s Petition for Review for lack of merit. Ret then appealed the case
with the CTA En Banc. On December 3, 2008, the ERABanc promulgated
a decision reversing the unfavorable decision ef @TA 2nd Division. The
CIR filed a Petition for Review with the Supreme utowhere the case
remains submitted for resolution.

Pandacan Terminal Operations

Citing concerns for safety, security and healtl, @ty of Manila passed City
Ordinance No. 8027 which reclassified the Pandde&aminal from industrial
to commercial. Petron, together with the other @wimpanies asked the
Supreme Court to change the ruling since the Conemsve Land Use Plan
and Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance No0.8119) repeaiedManila Ordinance
No. 8027. Ordinance No. 8119 gives Petron a seean-grace period to
continue its operations in the Pandacan TermimalFébruary 2008, the
Supreme Court denied the oil company’s motion feconsideration and
declared Manila Ordinance No. 8027 valid and applie to all oil terminals.
The Court directed the oil companies to submitrtireiocation plans to the
RTC within 90 days to determine the reasonablenéske time frame for
relocation. In May 2008, Petron, Shell and Chevrembmitted their
Comprehensive Relocation Plan in compliance withEebruary Resolution.
The Pandacan Terminal is strategically significginte it serves about 40%
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of the company’s refinery output and 100% of thenpany’s lubricants,
greases and oxidized asphalt.

On May 28, 2009, Mayor Alfredo Lim of Manila appexl and signed
proposed Ordinance 7177 (which became Ordinance 8487) repealing
Ordinance No. 8027 and 8119 and allowing the coetinstay of the oll
depots at Pandacan. Mayor Lim was reelected Mafyddamila in the May
10, 2010 election.

On June 1, 2009, Social Justice Society officked & petition for prohibition
against Mayor Lim before the Supreme Court, seekimg nullification of
Ordinance 8187. On June 5, 2009, former Mayor Btenza filed his own
petition with the Supreme Court seeking to stop tmplementation of
Ordinance 8187. The Court has ordered the Cityl@oits comment but the
Court did not issue a temporary restraining ordée City filed its comment
on August 13, 2009.

The main storage facility of Petron is locatedtla Pandacan Terminal.
Approximately 40% of Petron‘'s total sales volume nmsoved through
Pandacan. To ensure steady supply and in ordertigate the risks at the
Pandacan Terminal, the company‘s nearby depotsavofds, Metro Manila
and in Rosario, Cavite can also distribute prodtmtthe areas being served
by the Pandacan terminal.

Petron believes that, given the prevailing law amisting jurisprudence, the
Supreme Court will uphold the validity of Ordinarnde. 8187.

As stated in the papers (Philippine Daily Inquidame 28, 2010 issue), and as
confirmed during the management meeting in 201@0Reas looking at the
Manila North Harbor as a possible location fordepot that will replace its
facilities at the Pandacan Terminal. This is jus¢ of the sites that Petron is
looking at for the transfer, should it be forced nmve out of Pandacan.
According to SMC President and COO, Mr. Ramon Amgyving Petron’s
depot facilities to the North Harbor would redute tcompany’s handling
costs by as much as 80%, which may, in turn, résudtwer pump prices. Mr.
Ang explained that bringing oil to Pandacan cary @& done with barges as a
result of the Pasig River’s shallow draught of oBlgneters. North Harbor, on
the other hand, has deep-water facilities whickeascan use directly.

Based on SEC FORM 17-A filings of Petron, the camp has filed its
Manifestation on November 30, 2010 to inform th@i®me Court that it has
decided to cease operation of its petroleum productage facilities in
Pandacan, Manila within 5 years or not later thanuary 2016 due to
environmental issues and issues on the locatidineoterminal.

Petron’s operations at the Pandacan Terminal eirgglscaled down in line
with its commitment to have minimal operations eéhby 2014. The company
is already building storage capacities in altexsatsites. These storage
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facilities will support the expected growth in dexd&or petroleum products
outside of Metro Manila and the increased productinder RMP-2.

Guimaras Case

Complaints for Violation of Sec. 28, Paragraph Setation to Section 4 of
the Philippine CleaWater Act of 2004 (RA 9275) were filed against Mass
Nicasio I. Alcantara and Khalid D. Al-Faddagh, Bets former Chairman
and President, respectively, and the Captain angepwf M/T Solar 1 on
June 17, 2009, as a result of the oil slick from $hid vessel which sank on
August 11, 2006.

The Respondents denied the allegations imputechstgdiem, as the same
accusation was already resolved and dismissedebttvincial Prosecutor’'s
Office of Guimaras in a Resolution dated March@)2

On July 14, 2011, the Provincial Prosecutor’'s @ffef Guimaras issued a
Joint Resolution finding probable cause to indiet obwner and the Captain of
M/T Solar 1 and Messrs. Alcantara and Mr. FaddaghViolation of Section
28, Paragraph 5 in relation to Section 4 of thea@M/ater Act of 2004.

Messrs. Alcantara and Faddagh filed their Motion Reconsideration with
the Provincial Prosecutor's Office of Guimaras omgAst 1, 2011. The
Complainants filed their Reply and Supplemental @@nt while Messrs.
Alcantara and Faddagh countered this with a Repith viMotion for
Inhibition. Both Motions for Reconsideration anthibition have not been
resolved.

Petron did not hire or engaged the services ofC#yetain of M/T Solar 1 contrary to
the finding contained in the Marine Accident InquReport of the Special Marine
Inquiry Board relied upon by the Prosecutor’s Gifitn addition, under Republic Act
No. 9483, otherwise known as “The Oil Pollution Gumnsation Act of 20077, it is
the owner of the vessel, not the charterer, théiide for any oil spill or pollution

damage that may result from the operation of tiek \wessel.

11.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Objectives and Policies
The Group has significant exposure to the followingncial risks primarily from its
use of financial instruments:
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» Foreign currency risk

* Interest rate risk

» Creditrisk

e Liquidity risk

» Commodity price risk

* Other market price risk

This note presents information about the Groupisoskre to each of the foregoing
risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and proess®r measuring and managing
these risks, and the Group’s management of capital.

The Group’s principal financial instruments inclucish and cash equivalents, debt
and equity securities, bank loans and derivatigriments. The main purpose of
bank loans is to finance working capital relating itnportation of crude and
petroleum products, as well as to partly fund @pmixpenditures. The Group has
other financial assets and liabilities such asdradd other receivables and trade and
other payables, which are generated directly frisnoperations.

It is the Group’s policy not to enter into deriwai transactions for speculative
purposes. The Group uses hedging instrumentsoteqtrits margin on its products
from potential price volatility of crude oil andqutucts. It also enters into short-term
forward currency contracts to hedge its currengyosxre on crude oil importations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financiastruments are foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidityski and commodity price risk. The BOD
regularly reviews and approves the policies for agamg these financial risks. Details
of each of these risks are discussed below, togetitle the related risk management
structure.

Risk Management Structure
The Group follows an enterprise-wide risk managdnfiemmework for identifying,
assessing and addressing the risk factors thait affenay affect its businesses.

The Group’s risk management process is a bottormpgpoach, with each risk owner
mandated to conduct regular assessment of itprae and formulate action plans

for managing identified risks. As the Group’s @i@m is an integrated value chain,
risks emanate from every process, while some coutléicross groups. The results of
these activities flow up to the Management Commitéad, eventually, the BOD

through the Group’s annual business planning psoces

Oversight and technical assistance is likewise igem/ by corporate units and
committees with special duties. These groups heid tunctions are:
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The Risk and Insurance Management Group, which amdated with the
overall coordination and development of the entegpwide risk management
process.

The Financial Risk Management Unit of the TreassirBepartment, which is
in charge of foreign exchange hedging transactions.

The Transaction Management Unit of Controllers D&pant, which provides
backroom support for all hedging transactions.

The Corporate Technical & Engineering Services @ravhich oversees strict
adherence to safety and environmental mandatessaalidacilities.

The Internal Audit Department, which has been tdskith the implementation
of a risk-based auditing.

The BOD also created separate board-level entitigh explicit authority and
responsibility in managing and monitoring risksf@®ws:

a.

The Audit Committee, which ensures the integrityirgérnal control activities
throughout the Group. It develops, oversees, chaokl pre-approves financial
management functions and systems in the areaseditcmarket, liquidity,
operational, legal and other risks of the Group] arisis management. The
Internal Audit Department and the External Audidamectly report to the Audit
Committee regarding the direction, scope and coatdin of audit and any
related activities.

The Compliance Officer, who is a senior officerRgtron reports to the BOD
through the Audit Committee. He monitors complamath the provisions and
requirements of the Corporate Governance Manudérmiénes any possible
violations and recommends corresponding penalsedject to review and

approval of the BOD. The Compliance Officer idéa and monitors

compliance risk. Lastly, the Compliance Officepmesents the Group before
the SEC regarding matters involving compliance wita Code of Corporate
Governance.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s functional currency is the Philippiresp, which is the denomination of
the bulk of the Group’s revenues. The Group’s sypes to foreign exchange risk
arise mainly from United States (US) dollar-denceéxa sales as well as purchases
principally of crude oil and petroleum products.s A result of this, the Group
maintains a level of US dollar-denominated assets l@bilities during the period.
Foreign exchange risk occurs due to differencesthia levels of US dollar-
denominated assets and liabilities.
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The Group pursues a policy of hedging foreign ergearisk by purchasing currency
forwards or by substituting US dollar-denominatedbilities with peso-based debt.
The natural hedge provided by US dollar-denominaissets is also factored in
hedging decisions. As a matter of policy, currehegging is limited to the extent of
100% of the underlying exposure.

The Group is allowed to engage in active risk managnt strategies for a portion of
its foreign exchange risk exposure. Loss limits mr place, monitored daily and
regularly reviewed by management.

Information on the Group’s US dollar-denominatethficial assets and liabilities and
their Philippine peso equivalents as of SeptemBer2811 and December 31, 2010
are as follows:

September 30, 2011 December 31,2010
Peso Peso
US Dollar Equivalent US Dollar Equivalent
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents US$318 P13,897 US$648 P28,395
Trade and other receivables 608 26,573 173 7,606
Non-current receivables 1 63 1 29
927 40,533 822 36,030
Liabilities
Drafts and loans payable 30 1,312 59 2,573
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product importation 1,067 46,629 288 12,606
Long-term debt (including
current maturities) 276 12,072 355 15,563
1,373 60,013 702 30,742
Net foreign currency-
denominated monetary assets (US$446)  (P19,480) US$120 P5,288

The Group reported net foreign exchange gains dk)samounting to (P18) and
P1,182 for the period ending September 30, 20112814, respectively, with the
translation of its foreign currency-denominatedetssand liabilities. These mainly
resulted from the movements of the Philippine pegainst the US dollar as shown in
the following table:

Peso to US Dollar

December 31, 2009 46.20
September 30, 2010 43.88
December 31, 2010 43.84
September 30, 2011 43.72

The management of foreign currency risk is alsoplmpented by monitoring the
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sensitivity of financial instruments to various d@n currency exchange rate
scenarios. Foreign exchange movements affect egp@duity through the retained
earnings arising from increases or decreases iealined and realized foreign
exchange gains or losses.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivityatoeasonably possible change in
the US dollar exchange rate, with all other vaeabiield constant, of profit before tax
and equity as of September 30, 2011 and Decemb&030:

P1 decrease in the US$ P1 increase in the US$
exchange rate exchange rate
Effect on Effect on
Income before Effect on Income before Effect on
September 30, 2011 Income Tax Equity Income Tax Equity
Cash and cash equivalents (P299) (P228) P299 pP228
Trade and other receivables (95) (579) 95 579
Noncurrent receivables - (2) - 2
(394) (809) 394 809
Drafts and loans payable 30 21 (30) (21)
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product 569 896 (569) (896)
importation
Long-term debt (including
current maturities) 216 193 (276) (193)
875 1,110 (875) (1,110)
P481 P301 (P481) (P301)

P1 decrease in the US$ L1 increase in the US$ exchange

exchange rate rate
Effect on Effect on
Income before Effect on Income before Effect on
December 31, 2010 Income Tax Equity Income Tax Equity
Cash and cash equivalents (P642) (P455) P642 P455
Trade and other receivables (97) (144) 97 144
Noncurrent receivables - (1) - 1
(739) (600) 739 600
Drafts and loans payable - 59 - (59)
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product 285 202 (285) (202)
importation
Long-term debt_ (_mcludlng 355 249 (355) (249)
current maturities)
640 510 (640) (510)
(P99) (P90) P99 P90
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Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary duringéned depending on the volume
of overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the asabisove is considered to be
representative of the Group’s currency risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future castwBdrom a financial instrument (cash
flow interest rate risk) or its fair value (fair lua interest rate risk) will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Tloep& exposure to changes in
interest rates relates mainly to long-term borr@sirand investment securities.
Investments or borrowings issued at fixed rateos&he Group to fair value interest
rate risk. On the other hand, investments or bamgsvissued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group manages its interest costs by using aication of fixed and variable
rate debt instruments. Management is responsilidenfonitoring the prevailing
market-based interest rates and ensures that thkedaap rates levied on its
borrowings are most favorable and benchmarked aftie interest rates charged by
other creditor banks.

On the other hand, the Group’s investment policipimaintain an adequate yield to
match or reduce the net interest cost from itsdwairigs prior to deployment of funds
to their intended use in operations and workingitahmanagement. However, the
Group invests only in high-quality money markettinsents while maintaining the
necessary diversification to avoid concentratigR.ri

In managing interest rate risk, the Group aimseduce the impact of short-term
volatility on earnings. Over the longer term, hoeevwermanent changes in interest
rates would have an impact on profit or loss.

The management of interest rate risk is also supgied by monitoring the
sensitivity of financial instruments to variousrgdard and non-standard interest rate
scenarios. Interest rate movements affect repoegdity through the retained
earnings arising from increases or decreases @neisit income or interest expense as
well as fair value changes reported in profit aslaf any.

The sensitivity to a reasonably possible 1% in@easthe interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreésedsroup’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) %36 and P180 in the period
ending September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2040ectvely. A 1% decrease in
the interest rate would have had the equal but sipeffect. There is no impact on
the Group’s other income.
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Interest Rate Risk Table

As at September 30, 2011 and December 31, 201Q@ethns and maturity profile of

the interest-

bearing financial instruments, together with itogg amounts, are shown in the

following tables:

September 30, 201 <1yeal 1-<2 year: 2-<3 years 3-<4 years 4-<5 year: >5 year: Total
Fixed rate
Philippine peso P356 P48 P5,248 P48 P4,512 P20,00C P30,212
denominated
Interest rate 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.3% 6.4%-9.2%
Floating rate
Philippine peso 767 600 150 - - - 1,517
denominated
net 1M SDA
+ margin, 3- net 1M net 1M
Interest rate mo. Martl/ SDA + SDA +
PDSTF + margin margin
margin
US$ denominated
(expressed in Php) 1,724 3,449 3,449 3,449 - - 12,071
3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos.
Interest rate* Libor + Libor + Libor + Libor +
margin margin margin margin
P2,847 P4,097 P8,847 P3,497 P4,512 P20,000 P43,800
*The group reprices every 3 months but has beeengan option to reprice every 6 months.
December 31, 2010 <1 year 1-<2 years 2-<3 years 4 \edrs 4-<5 years >5 years Total
Fixed rate
Philippine peso P6,963 P202 P48 P5,248 P48 P24,511 237,0
denominated
Interest rate 6.4% - 9.3% 6.4%-93% 6.4%-93% 64%-93% 6.88% 6.4%-9.3%
Floating rate
Philippine peso 1,267 600 600 - - - 2,467
denominated
net 1M SDA
+ margin, 3- net 1M net 1M
mo. Martl/ SDA + SDA +
PDSTF + margin margin
margin
Interest rate
US$ denominated
(expressed in Php) 3,459 3,459 3,458 3,458 1,729 - 15,563
3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos. 3, 6 mos.
Libor + Libor + Libor + Libor + Libor +
Interest rate margin margin margin margin margin
P11,689 P4,261 P4,106 P8,706 P1,777 PP4,51 P55,050

Credit Risk
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Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to theo@p if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractodligations. In effectively managing
credit risk, the Group regulates and extends cradit to qualified and credit-worthy
customers and counterparties, consistent with ksitaol Group credit policies,
guidelines and credit verification procedures. Restjdor credit facilities from trade
customers undergo stages of review by Sales andn€&en Divisions. Approvals,
which are based on amounts of credit lines reqdeate vested among line managers
and top management that include the President b@dChairman.Generally, the
maximum credit risk exposure of financial assetthestotal carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown on the face of the cmlaet statement of financial
position or in the notes to the consolidated fina@nstatements, as summarized
below:

September 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

Cash in bank and cash equivalents P17,141 P40,358
Derivative assets 138 34
Trade and other receivables-net 26,003 24,266
Due from affiliates 23,378 22,447
Noncurrent receivables 110 122
P66,770 P87,227

The credit risk for cash in bank and cash equitaleand derivative financial
instruments is considered negligible, since thentenparties are reputable entities
with gain high quality external credit ratings. Theedit quality of these financial
assets is considered to be high grade.

In monitoring trade receivables and credit lindse Group maintains up-to-date
records where daily sales and collection transastf all customers are recorded in
real-time and month-end statements of accountsfarearded to customers as
collection medium. Finance Division’s Credit Depaent regularly reports to
management trade receivables balances (monthly)cesdlt utilization efficiency
(semi-annually).

Collaterals. To the extent practicable, the Group also requidkteral as security
for a credit facility to mitigate risk in trade mgables. Among the collaterals held
are letters of credit, bank guarantees, real estattgages, and cash bonds valued at
P3,138 and P2,736 as of September 30, 2011 anchibece81, 2010, respectively.
These securities may only be called on or applmzhwefault of customers.

Credit Risk Concentratiormhe Group’s exposure to credit risk arises fromadkfof

counterparty. Generally, the maximum credit riskp@sure of trade and other
receivables is its carrying amount without consitgr collaterals or credit
enhancements, if any. The Group has no significantentration of credit risk since
the Group deals with a large number of homogencadetcustomers. The Group
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does not execute any guarantee in favor of anytegoarty.

Credit Quality. In monitoring and controlling credit extended tounterparty, the
Group adopts a comprehensive credit rating systased on financial and non-
financial assessments of its customers. Finana@bfs being considered comprised
of the financial standing of the customer while ttfn-financial aspects include but
are not limited to the assessment of the customedtire of the business,
management profile, industry background, paymeriithand both present and
potential business dealings with the Group.

Class A “High Grade” are accounts with strong ficiah capacity and business
performance and with the lowest default risk.

Class B “Moderate Grade” refer to accounts of &attery financial capability and
credit standing but with some elements of risks reheertain measure of control is
necessary in order to mitigate risk of default.

Class C “Low Grade” are accounts with high proligbdf delinquency and default.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk pertains to the risk that the Growdl encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilitidsat are settled by delivering cash of
another financial asset.

The Group’s objectives in managing its liquiditgkriare as follows: a) to ensure that
adequate funding is available at all times; b) teemcommitments as they arise
without incurring unnecessary costs; c) to be ablaccess funding when needed at
the least possible cost; and d) to maintain an wategtime spread of refinancing

maturities.

The Group constantly monitors and manages itsdiguposition, liquidity gaps or
surplus on alaily basis. A committed stand-by credit facilitprin several local banks
is also available to ensure availability of fundsen necessary. The Group also uses
derivative instruments such as forwards and swapsainage liquidity.

The table below summarizes the maturity profildh&f Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities based on contractual undistiaad payments used for liquidity
management as of September 30, 2011 and Decemp20 1

Carrying  Contractual lyear >1 year >2 year Over5
September 30, 2011 Amount Cash Flow or less -2years -5years years
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents P20,399 P20,399 P20,399 P- P- P-
Trade and other
receivables 26,003 26,003 26,003 - - -
Due from affiliates 23,378 24,141 1,764 21,952 425 -
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Derivative assets 138 138 138 - - -

Financial assets at FVPL 185 185 185 - - -
AFS financial assets 1,034 1,211 71 112 1,028 -
Noncurrent receivables 110 122 7 25 56 34

Financial liabilities
Short-term loans 35,502 35,760 35,760 - - -
Accounts payable and

accrued expenses

(excluding taxes

payable) 28,067 28,067 28,067 - - -
Derivative liabilities 97 97 97 - - -
Long-term debt
(including

current maturities) 43,282 59,261 5,819 6,957 24,16 22,381
Cash bonds 305 313 260 12 12 29
Cylinder deposits 346 346 - - - 346
Other noncurrent

liabilities 51 51 - 1 32 18

Carrying Contractual lyear >1 year >2 year Over5

December 31, 2010 Amount Cash Flow orless -2years -5years years

Financial assets
Cash and cash

equivalents P43,984 P43,984 P43,984 P- P- P-
Trade and other

receivables 24,266 24,266 24,266 - - -
Due from affiliates 22,447 22,921 907 22,014 - -
Derivative assets 34 34 34 - - -
Financial assets at FVPL 193 193 193 - - -
AFS financial assets 1,161 1,372 250 57 1,065 -
Noncurrent receivables 122 122 - 20 65 37

Financial liabilities
Short-term loans 32,457 32,733 32,733 - - -
Accounts payable and

accrued expenses

(excluding taxes

payable) 17,375 17,375 17,375 - - -
Derivative liabilities 30 30 30 - - -
Long-term debt
(including

current maturities) 54,402 72,752 15,360 7,198 22,162 28,032
Cash bonds 275 284 219 26 19 20
Cylinder deposits 274 274 - - - 274
Other noncurrent

liabilities 60 60 - 10 27 23

Commodity Price Risk
Commodity price risk is the risk that future castwis from a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
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To minimize the Company’s risk of potential losske to volatility of international
crude and product prices, the Group implementednoodity hedging for petroleum
products. The Group enters into various commodstyvatives to (a) protect margins
of MOPS (Mean of Platts of Singapore) based sale$ @) protect product
inventories from downward price risk. Hedging pglincludes the use of commodity
price swaps, buying of put options, and use ofacslbnd 3-way options. Decisions
are guided by the conditions set and approved &¥ttoup’s management.

Other Market Price Risk

The Group’s market price risk arises from its irtgents carried at fair value (FVPL
and AFS financial assets). The Group managessksarising from changes in market
price by monitoring the changes in the market poictne investments.

Capital Management

The Group’s capital management policies and prograim to provide an optimal

capital structure that would ensure the Group'$itglib continue as a going concern
while at the same time provide adequate returnthéoshareholders. As such, it
considers the best trade-off between risks assutiatith debt financing and

relatively higher cost of equity funds. Likewis@napliance with the debt to equity
ratio covenant of bank loans has to be ensured.

An enterprise resource planning system is useddwitor and forecast the Group’s
overall financial position. The Group may adjus¢ timount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares as well as incoeakrease assets and/or liabilities
depending on the prevailing internal and externaimess conditions.

The Group monitors capital via carrying amount afuiey as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Theup’s capital for the covered
reporting period is summarized in the table below:

September 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

Total assets P170,961 P161,816
Total liabilities 111,676 108,472
Total equity 59,285 53,344
Debt to equity ratio 1.9:1 2.0:1

There were no changes in the Group’s approach pgdatananagement during the
period.

12.Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
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Date of RecognitionThe Group recognizes a financial asset or a firguiaibility in

the consolidated statements of financial positidmenvit becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. In thseof a regular way purchase or sale
of financial assets, recognition is done usinges®int date accounting.

Initial Recognition of Financial Instrument&inancial instruments are recognized
initially at fair value of the consideration givéim case of an asset) or received (in
case of a liability). The initial measurement afdincial instruments, except for those
designated at fair value through profit or loss Y, includes transaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets in tHWang categories: held-to-maturity
(HTM) investments, available for sale (AFS) finalcassets, financial assets at
FVPL and loans and receivables. The Group classifsefinancial liabilities as either
FVPL or other financial liabilities. The classifican depends on the purpose for
which the investments are acquired and whether éheyjuoted in an active market.
Management determines the classification of itsarfolial assets and financial
liabilities at initial recognition and, where alled and appropriate, re-evaluates such
designation at every reporting date.

Determination of Fair ValueThe fair value for financial instruments tradedhutive
markets at the reporting date is based on theitegumarket price or dealer price
guotations (bid price for long positions and askefor short positions), without any
deduction for transaction costs. When current bid ask prices are not available, the
price of the most recent transaction provides enddeof the current fair value as long
as there is no significant change in economic onstances since the time of the
transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed in active market, the fair value is
determined by using appropriate valuation techrsquéaluation techniques include
the discounted cash flow method, comparison tolaimmstruments for which market
observable prices exist, options pricing models @her relevant valuation models.

‘Day 1’ Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active maikelifferent from
the fair value of the other observable current markansactions in the same
instrument or based on a valuation technique wkasables include only data from
observable market, the Group recognizes the difterdoetween the transaction price
and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit) in profit or logmless it qualifies for recognition as
some other type of asset. In cases where use @& rof data which are not
observable, the difference between the transagitice and model value is only
recognized in the consolidated statement of incomieen the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecogniZeat. each transaction, the Group
determines the appropriate method of recognizieg@ay 1’ profit amount.

Financial Assets
Financial Assets at FVPIA financial asset is classified at FVPL if it isasbified as
held for trading or is designated as such upomaimiécognition. Financial assets are
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designated at FVPL if the Group manages such imagsis and makes purchase and
sale decisions based on their fair value in accarelavith the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy. Derivatigguments (including embedded
derivatives), except those covered by hedge acocmuntlationships, are classified
under this category.

Financial assets are classified as held for traditigey are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term.

Financial assets may be designated by managemanitiatrecognition as at FVPL,
when any of the following criteria is met:

= the designation eliminates or significantly reduti®s inconsistent treatment
that would otherwise arise from measuring the assetecognizing gains or
losses on a different basis;

= the assets are part of a group of financial asgkish are managed and their
performances are evaluated on a fair value basisaccordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy;

= the financial instrument contains an embedded dgvie, unless the
embedded derivative does not significantly modife tcash flows or it is
clear, with little or no analysis, that it wouldtrbe separately recognized.

The Group uses commodity price swaps to protech#sgin on petroleum products

from potential price volatility of international e and product prices. It also enters
into short-term forward currency contracts to heilgeurrency exposure on crude oil

importations. In addition, the Company has ideatifiand bifurcated embedded

foreign currency derivatives from certain non-fineh contracts.

Derivatives instruments are initially recognizedfat value on the date in which a
derivative transaction is entered into or bifurdatend are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. Derivatives are presented in theas®p statement of financial position
as assets when the fair value is positive and aslities when the fair value is
negative. Gains and losses from changes in faivevalf these derivatives are
recognized under the caption marked-to-market dlmsses) included as part of
“Other Income (Expenses)” in the separate statemfectmprehensive income.

The fair values of freestanding and bifurcated fmavcurrency transactions are
calculated by reference to current exchange ratesdntracts with similar maturity
profiles. The fair values of commodity swaps ardedained based on quotes
obtained from counterparty banks.

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL and derivathgsets are included in this
category.
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The carrying values of financial assets under thiegory amounted to P323, P195
and P227 as of September and June 30, 2011 andnbec81, 2010, respectively.

Loans and Receivabletoans and receivables are non-derivative finanagsets
with fixed or determinable payments and maturitiest are not quoted in an active
market. They are not entered into with the intantidimmediate or short-term resale
and are not designated as AFS financial asseteandial assets at FVPL.

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and rabkds are carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method, less iarpairment in value. Any interest
earned on loans and receivables shall be recogizquhrt of “Interest income” in
profit and loss on an accrual basis. Amortizedt ¢oscalculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition feed that are integral part of the
effective interest rate. The periodic amortizatisralso included as part of “Interest
income” in the consolidated statements of incom@n&or losses are recognized in
profit or loss when loans and receivables are @gmized or impaired, as well as
through the amortization process.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks which tatedsat face value. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investitsethat are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject tansignificant risk of changes in
value.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade ahedr okceivables, due from
affiliates and noncurrent receivables are includetthis category.

The combined carrying values of financial assetdeurthis category amounted to
P69,890, P69,031 and P90,819 as of September aed3My 2011 and December 31,
2010, respectively.

HTM InvestmentddTM investments are quoted non-derivative finaneisdets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities which the Group’s
management has the positive intention and abitithald to maturity. Where the
Group sells other than an insignificant amount AfiMH investments, the entire
category would be tainted and reclassified as AlR38ntial assets. After initial
measurement, these investments are measured afizatarost using the effective
interest rate method, less impairment in value.y Arterest earned on the HTM
investments shall be recognized as part of “Intenesome” in the consolidated
statements of income on an accrual basis. Amaritpst is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition feed that are integral part of the
effective interest rate. The periodic amortizatisralso included as part of “Interest
income” in the consolidated statements of incom&n&or losses are recognized in
profit or loss when the HTM investments are derecgd or impaired, as well as
through the amortization process

- 40 -



As of September and June 30, 2011 and DecembeR@N, the Group has no
investments accounted under this category.

AFS Financial AssetsAFS financial assets are non-derivative financidess that
are either designated in this category or not i#ledsin any of the other financial
asset categories. Subsequent to initial recognitfoey are measured at fair value and
changes therein, other than impairment losses arelgh currency differences on
AFS debt instruments, are recognized in other cehgmsive income and presented
in the “Other reserves” in equity. The effectiveeldi component of AFS debt
securities, as well as the impact of restatemeribaign currency-denominated AFS
investment securities, is reported as part of fegeincome” in the consolidated
statement of income. The unrealized gains and $oagsing from the changes in fair
value of AFS financial assets, net of tax, are @wketl from profit and loss and are
recognized as other comprehensive income repantélaei consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and in the consolidated sttenf changes iequity under
“Other Reserves” account. Any interest earned orf Afebt securities shall be
recognized as part of “Interest income” in the chidated statement of income on an
accrual basis. Dividends earned on holding AFStgmecurities are recognized as
“Dividend income” when the right of collection hdseen established. When
individual AFS financial assets are either derecogph or impaired, the related
accumulated unrealized gains or losses previowgigrted equity are transferred to
and recognized in profit or loss.

Where the Group holds more than one investmenhénsame security, these are
deemed to be disposed on a first-in, first-out 9asiterest and dividends earned on
holding AFS financial assets are recognized in #dtlncome” account in the
consolidated statement of income when the rightrdceive payment has been
established. The losses arising from impairmenduzh investments are recognized
as impairment losses in profit or loss.

AFS financial assets also include unquoted equsyriments with fair values which
cannot be reliably determined. These instrumerdgscarried at cost less impairment
in value, if any. The Group’s investments in dalet @assified under this category.

The carrying values of financial assets under tategory amounted to P1,034,
P1,186 and P1,161 as of September and June 30, &td December 31, 2010,
respectively.

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at FVPL.Financial liabilities are classified under thiseggdry
through the fair value option. Derivative instrumtge (including embedded
derivatives) with negative fair values are alsssified under this category.

The Group carries financial liabilities at FVPL ngitheir fair values and reports fair
value changes in the consolidated statement omeco
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The carrying values of financial liabilities undiais category amounted to P97, P6
and P30 as of
September and June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2&p@ctively

Other Financial Liabilities.This category pertains to financial liabilities tlreae not
designated or classified as at FVPL. After initrabasurement, other financial
liabilities are carried at amortized cost using #féective interest rate method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into accoammy premium or discount and any
directly attributable transaction costs that aresodered an integral part of the
effective interest rate of the liability.

Included in this category are the Group’s liakektiarising from its short term loans,
liabilities for crude oil and petroleum product iortation, trade and other payables,
long-term debt, cash bond, cylinder deposits ahdraton-current liabilities.

The combined carrying values of financial liabdgiunder this category amounted to
P107,553, P99,415 and P104,843 as of Septembejuaad30, 2011 and December
31, 2010, respectively

Debt Issue Costs

Debt issue costs are considered as an adjustméiné teffective yield of the related
debt and are deferred and amortized using theteiteiniterest rate method. When a
loan is paid, the related unamortized debt isswstscat the date of repayment are
charged against current operations.

Embedded Derivatives
The Group assesses whether embedded derivativescurieed to be separated from
host contracts when the Group becomes a partyetodhtract.

An embedded derivative is separated from the hastract and accounted for as a
derivative if all of the following conditions areen a) the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not cjoselated to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract sgparate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet theitieh of a derivative; and c) the
hybrid or combined instrument is not recognize&\@PL. Reassessment only occurs
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if there is a change in the terms of the contrhat significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financiabiliaes
Financial AssetsA financial asset (or, where applicable, a para déhancial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) isedegnized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asseiredp

= the Group retains the right to receive cash flowsnf the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full withowtenial delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

» the Group has transferred its rights to receivdn disvs from the asset and
either:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks eewdlards of the asset; or (b)
has neither transferred nor retained substantallyhe risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receash flows from an asset and has
neither transferred nor retained substantiallyhadl risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset isgrezed to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuingolement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measuteée &wer of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of deration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the adtion under
the liability is discharged, cancelled or expiré¢hen an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on sufmtgrdifferent terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially difeed, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of thigioal liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respeeticarrying amounts is recognized in
profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at reporting date whether racfalaasset or group of financial
assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assetdegemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment asesult of one or more events that
have occurred after the initial recognition of Heset (an incurred loss event) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated futwsle ftaws of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliastymated.
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Assets Carried at Amortized CoBbr assets carried at amortized cost such as loans
and receivables, the Group first assesses whetljective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that amnéividually significant, or collectively

for financial assets that are not individually sfgant. If no objective evidence of
impairment has been identified for a particulaafinial asset that was individually
assessed, the Group includes the asset as pargroup of financial assets pooled
according to their credit risk characteristics amdlectively assesses the group for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessgdrhpairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recogniaerinot included in the collective
impairment assessment.

Evidence of impairment for specific impairment ppgps may include indications
that the borrower or a group of borrowers is exgmering financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in principal or interest payments,nmay enter into bankruptcy or
other form of financial reorganization intendedatteviate the financial condition of
the borrower. For collective impairment purposegidence of impairment may
include observable data on existing economic cardit or industry-wide
developments indicating that there is a measurdéteease in the estimated future
cash flows of the related assets.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, thmeoant of loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amountthedpresent value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit lossdscounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effeetiinterest rate computed at initial
recognition). Time value is generally not considevehen the effect of discounting
the cash flows is not material. If a loan or reabie has a variable rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the curedfective interest rate, adjusted
for the original credit risk premium. For colleatiimpairment purposes, impairment
loss is computed based on their respective dedadlthistorical loss experience.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduttedredirectly or through use of an
allowance account. The impairment loss for theqaeshall be recognized in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount ofitifairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an eveniroog after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairmess I reversed. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized irfipar loss, to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed itstea®d cost at the reversal date.

AFS Financial Assetdf an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amowrhprising

the difference between the cost (net of any pradcgayment and amortization) and
its current fair value, less any impairment losstbat financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss, is transferred froquigy to profit or loss. Reversals in
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respect of equity instruments classified as AFarfoal assets are not recognized in
profit or loss. Reversals of impairment lossesdeht instruments are recognized in
profit or loss, if the increase in fair value oetmstrument can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss veasgnized in profit or loss.

In the case of an unquoted equity instrument oa alferivative asset linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equusgrument, for which its fair value

cannot be reliably measured, the amount of impaitmess is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amountthadpresent value of estimated
future cash flows from the asset discounted ugmgistorical effective rate of return

on the asset.

Classification of Financial Instruments Between Daalid Equity
From the perspective of the issuer, a financiatrimsent is classified as debt
instrument if it provides for a contractual obliigat to:

= deliver cash or another financial asset to anathéty;

= exchange financial assets or financial liabilitiegh another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavorable to @eup; or

= gsatisfy the obligation other than by the exchanige fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of oguity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional righ&vtoid delivering cash or another
financial asset to settle its contractual obligatithe obligation meets the definition
of a financial liability.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are efffand the net amount is reported in
the consolidated statements of financial positipramd only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognizedants and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the assesetti@ the liability simultaneously. This
is not generally the case with master netting agesgs, and the related assets and
liabilities are presented gross in the consolidatatements of financial position.

-45 -



The table below presents a comparison by categbmawying amounts and fair
values of the Group’s financial instruments as ept8mber 30, 2011 December 31,

2010:

September 30, 2011 December 31, 2010

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value

Financial assets (FA):

Cash and cash equivalents P20,399 P20,399 P43,984 P43,984
Trade and other receivables 26,003 26,003 24,266 24,266
Due from affiliates 23,378 23,378 22,447 22,447
Long-term receivables 110 110 122 122
Loans and receivables 69,890 69,890 90,819 90,819
AFS financial assets 1,034 1,034 1,161 1,161
Financial assets at FVPL 185 185 193 193
Derivative assets 138 138 34 34
FA at FVPL 323 323 227 227
Total financial assets P71,247 P71,247 P92,207 P92,207

September 30, 2011

December 31, 2010

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
Financial liabilities (FL):
Short-term loans P35,502 P35,502 P32,457 P32,457
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product
importation 21,872 21,872 11,194 11,194
Trade and other payables
(excluding specific taxes
and other taxes payable) 6,195 6,195 6,181 6,181
Long-term debt including
current portion 43,282 43,282 54,402 54,402
Cash bonds 305 305 275 275
Cylinder deposits 346 346 274 274
Other noncurrent liabilities 51 51 60 60
FL at amortized cost 107,553 107,553 104,843 104,843
Derivative liabilities 97 97 30 30
Total financial liabilities P107,650 P107,650 P104,873 P104,873
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The following methods and assumptions are usedtimate the fair value of each
class of financial instruments and when it is pcatile to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Recksaland Noncurrent
ReceivablesThe carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents raneivables
approximates fair value primarily due to the refally short-term maturities of these
financial instruments. In the case of long-termereables, the fair value is based on
the present value of expected future cash flowaguttie applicable discount rates
based on current market rates of identical or singlioted instruments.

Derivatives. The fair values of freestanding and bifurcated fmdv currency

transactions are calculated by reference to curfentard exchange rates for
contracts with similar maturity profiles. Mark-toamket valuation in 2011 and 2010
of commodity hedges were based on the forecastedecand product prices by
Mitsui & Co. Commodity Risk Management Ltd. (MCRMIn independent trading

group.

Financial Assets at FVPL and AFS Financial Asset$ie fair values of publicly
traded instruments and similar investments aredasequoted market prices in an
active market. For debt instruments with no quotearket prices, a reasonable
estimate of their fair values is calculated basedh® expected cash flows from the
instruments discounted using the applicable discmates of comparable instruments
guoted in active markets. Unquoted equity secarittege carried at cost less
impairment.

Long-term Debt - Floating Rat&/ariable rate loans are repriced every three month,
the carrying value approximates its fair value lbseaof recent regular repricing
based on current market rates.

Cash BondsFair value is estimated as the present value ofuéllire cash flows
discounted using the market rates for similar tygfaastruments.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments acaagdto the type of financial risk
being managed and the details of freestanding amoedded derivative financial
instruments are discussed below.

The Group enters into various commodity derivativatracts to manage its exposure
on commodity price risk. The portfolio is a mixtud instruments including
forwards, swaps and options covering the Grouptpirements on crude oil and
finished products. These include freestanding emiedded derivatives found in
host contracts, which are not designated as acoguhédges. Changes in fair value
of these instruments are recognized directly irfipoo loss.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments acaogdto the type of financial risk
being managed are discussed below.
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Freestanding Derivatives
Freestanding derivatives consist of commodity dgiwes and currency derivatives
entered into by the Group.

Currency Forwards

As of September and June 30, 2011 and DecembeP@N), the Company has
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts watjgregate notional amount of
US$182, US$155 and US$15, respectively with varimagurities up to December
2011. As of September and June 30, 2011 and Dewregilh 2010, the net positive
(negative) fair value of these currency forwardsoanted to P138, (P1) and nil,
respectively.

Currency Options
The Company has no outstanding currency optioneageats as of September and
June 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

Commodity Swaps

The Company has outstanding swap agreements cgvetsn fuel and crude
requirements, with various maturities in 2011. &indhe agreement, payment is
made either by the Company or its counterpartyterdifference between the agreed
fixed price of fuels and crude and the price basedhe relevant price indeXhe
outstanding equivalent notional quantities covelogdthe commodity swaps as of
September and June 30, 2011 and December 31, 288030 MMB, 5.7 MMBand

1.5 MMB, respectively. As of September and June 30, 2011 and December 31,
2010,the total mark-to-market gain (loss) of these swapsunted to (P267), (P128)
and P32, respectively.

Commodity Options

The Company has outstanding commodity option agee¢snas of September and
June 30, 2011 andecember 31, 2010 with notional quantities totaldy MMB, 0.9
MMB and 2.8 MMB, respectively. The respective meskmarket gain (loss) of these
hedges amounted to P634, PHI®I P234 as of September and June 30, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively.

Embedded Derivatives
The Group assesses whether embedded derivativescaiieed to be separated from
the host contracts when the Group becomes a pmathetcontract.

An embedded derivative is separated from the hostract and accounted for as a
derivative if all of the following conditions areen a) the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not cjoselated to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet theitieh of a derivative; and c) the
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hybrid or combined instrument is not recognize&\@PL. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contrhat significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required.

The Group’s embedded derivatives include curreneyivdtives (forwards and
options) embedded in non-financial contracts.

Embedded Currency Forwards

As of September and June 30, 2011 and Decembe2(3D, the total outstanding
notional amount of currency forwards embedded im-fi@ancial contracts amounted
to US$71, US$4 and US$151, respectively. Thesefinancial contracts consist
mainly of foreign currency-denominated service caxts, purchase orders and sales
agreements. The embedded forwards are not cleadyc#osely related to their
respective host contracts. As of September ané B0n 2011 and December 31,
2010, the net positive (negative) fair value ofstheembedded currency forwards
amounted to (P97), (P0.7) and (P4), respectively.

For the periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2@dOume 30, 2011 and 2010, the
Group recognized marked-to-market gains from eméedterivatives amounting to
P229, P189, P68 and P85, respectively.

Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 7, financial assets armilities measured at fair value in
the statement of financial position are categorizedccordance with the fair value
hierarchy. This hierarchy groups financial assats labilities into three levels based
on the significance of inputs used in measuringféiirevalue of the financial assets
and liabilities.

The table below analyzes financial instrumentsiedrat fair value, by valuation
method as of September 30, 2011 and December 30, Zbe different levels have
been defined as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active ratgKor identical assets or
liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includéthin Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dilgor indirectly.

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability thatanot based on observable
market data.

September 30, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Total

Financial Assets

Financial assets at FVPL P185 P- P185
Derivative assets - 138 138
AFS financial assets - 1,034 1,034
Financial Liabilities

Derivative liabilities 97 97
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December 31, 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Financial Assets

Financial assets at FVPL P193 P - P193
Derivative assets - 34 34
AFS financial assets - 1,161 1,161
Financial Liabilities

Derivative liabilities 30 30

As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010Gtioeip has no financial

instruments valued based on Level 3. During ther,yd®ere were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurememd no transfers into and out
of Level 3 fair value measurements.

13. Events after the Reporting Date

On October 7, 2011, we disclosed that the PhilgdRating Services Corporation
(PhilRatings) maintained Petron Corporation’s coap® credit rating of PRS Aaa
(corp.) on the Company’s overall capacity to sexvis maturing obligations within a
period of one year. A PRS Aaa credit rating is tighest score on PhilRatings’
issuer/corporate credit rating scale, which is git®@ companies exhibiting a strong
capacity to meet its financial commitments relatitee that of other Philippine
corporate.

On October 21, 2011, the BOD declared a cash cwddef P2.382/share to all
preferred stockholders for the last quarter of 28fd the first quarter of 2012 with
the following record and payment dates:

Period Record Date Payment Date
4™ Quarter 2011 November 16, 2011 December 5, 2011
1° Quarter 2012 February 21, 2012 March 5, 2012

On October 28, 2011, the Parent Company raiseddB3r6m the sale of fixed-rate
corporate notes with ING Bank N.V.’s Manila Braraharranger and bookrunner.

14.0Other Matters
a. There were no unusual items as to nature and anadigating assets, liabilities,
equity, net income or cash flows, except thosedtat Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Position and Performance.

b. There were no seasonal aspects that had a matkeel on the financial position
or financial performance of the Group.
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c. There were no material off-statements of financpsition transactions,
arrangements, obligations (including contingent igattions), and other
relationship of the Group with unconsolidated ésditor other persons created
during the reporting period, except for the outdiag derivative transactions
entered by the Group as of and for the period endeSeptember 30, 2011.

d. Known trends, demands, commitments, events or tainges that will have a
material impact on the Group’s liquidity.

Gross Domestic Product (GDP)

After growing robustly in 2010 due to high electispending, the domestic
economy slowed down in 2011. GDP in the 2Q11 expdmderely by 3.4% after

the strong 8.9% growth in the same quarter last. ydze slowdown was due to
the rising commodity prices, particularly of fueleywer growth of remittances

due to the turmoil in the Middle East and Northiédrand the tragedy in Japan,
lower foreign direct investments and exports, aagid decline in government
spending. Government underspending was observdteasirrent administration

has become more stringent in releasing funds fioastructure and other social
projects to avoid corruption and reduce budgetctefi

91-Day Treasury-Bill Rate

91-day T-bills averaged 1.6% in the first three repra of 2011, substantially
lower than the same period last year of 3.9% and2BY0O average of 3.7%.
Interest rates in 2011 have been low due to thiecmirft liquidity in the domestic
financial markets.

Peso-Dollar Exchange Rate

The local currency sustained its strength and aeetd43.3/$ in the first three
guarters of 2011 from 2010 FY average of P45.1/8 amuarter average of
P45.6/$ in 2010. The continuously growing OFW réamites, and strong
portfolio investments contributed to the peso’srapg@tion. The Dollar’s general
weakness due to the US’ fragile economy also beedfother currencies like the
peso.

Inflation

Inflation averaged 4.3% in the first nine month6fL1 (based on 2000 prices),
slightly higher from 4.1% average in the same pmed@st year and from FY
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2010's 3.8% average. Prices of fuel, light, watard services have been higher
this year compared to 2010. YTD September avenaftggion remains within the
government’s target inflation of 3-5% for FY 2011.

Dubai price

Dubai crude averaged $106.2/bbl as of YTD Septer@béd, a large leap from

the $76.0/bbl average in the same period last gedr$77.1/bbl FY average in
2010. The surge of crude prices was triggeredhbyheightened turmoil in the

oil-exporting regions Middle East and North Afriegpecially during the 1H,

disrupting some supply of crude. Crude prices walso boosted by high

investment in the crude futures market due to teakness of the dollar, and the
strength of the equities market.

Industry Oil Demand

Data from DOE shows that as of August 2011, toilahdustry demand dropped
by 5.9% from 308.6 MBD in the same period last yeaonly 290.4 MBD this
year. The rising prices of fuels in 2011 affectadustry demand. Motorists,
industries, and households tend to conserve fusgwaption during times of high
prices.

Tight Industry Competition

Competition remains stiff with the new players iemplenting different marketing
strategies and aggressively expanding. As of YTQust 2011, the new players
(excluding direct imports) have collectively coreéraround 24.6% of the total oil
market. Collectively, the new players are leadimg tPG market segment with
45.0% market share.

Updates on 2011 Capital Program

The 2011 capital program endorsed last Decembed ZOP88.6 billion. Of this

amount P23.7 billion has already been approvedireiddes partial funding for

the refinery expansion project, service stationwoet expansion, consumer
facilities, asphalt facilities, maintenance andeotéfficiency projects.

. Known trends, events or uncertainties that have badhat are reasonably
expected to have a favorable or unfavorable impachet sales or revenues or
income from continuing operation.

lllegal Trading Practices

Cases of smuggling and illegal trading (e.g. “bot¢e” retailing, illegal refilling)
continue to be a concern. These illegal practicasehresulted in unfair
competition among players.
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Existing or Probable Government Requlation

EO 890: Removing Import Duties on All Crude andiriéef Petroleum Products.
After the ASEAN Trade in Goods Agreement (ATIGA)snaplemented starting
2010, tariff rate structure in the oil industry wdistorted with crude and product
imports from ASEAN countries enjoying zero tariffhile crude and product
imports from outside the ASEAN are levied 3%. Teelethe playing field, Petron
filed a petition with the Tariff Commission to agghe same tariff duty on crude
and petroleum product imports, regardless of soutoe June 2010, the
government approved Petron’s petition and issueectitxwe Order 890 which
eliminates import duties on all crude and petrolgaroducts regardless of source.
The reduction of duties took effect on July 4, 2010

Biofuels Act of 2006.The Biofuels Act of 2006 mandates that ethanol ausep
5% of total gasoline volumes, and diesels cont&n @ME (cocomethyl ester).
By 2011, all gasoline grades should contain 10%reih

The Department of Energy circular (DC 2011-02-00€igjhed February 6, 2011
further elaborates that the 10% ethanol blend shallmandatory beginning
August 26, 2011, subject to exempt gasoline gradéese exempt gasoline
grades are regular gasoline with RON 81 for useoftfroad engines, farm
equipment and small motorized bancas; regular geeselith RON 87 for use of
motorcycles and premium plus gasoline with minimR@N of 97. By February
6, 2012 or upon full implementation, all gasolimades, no exemptions, shall be
required to contain 10% ethanol. Full implementatiall be subject to review 30
days before February 6, 2012 to determine its ewanoviability given
availability of supply and ethanol prices.

To produce compliant fuels, the Company investe@ME (coco methyl esther)
injection systems at the refinery and depots. Roothe mandatory blending of
ethanol into gasoline by 2009, the Company alreatiyted selling ethanol
blended gasoline in selected service stations itrdvidanila in May 2008.

Renewable Energy Act of 2008he Renewable Energy Act signed in December
2008 aims to promote development and commerciaizabf renewable and
environment-friendly energy resources (e.g. biomssiar, wind) through various
tax incentives. Renewable energy developers willglhven 7-year income tax
holiday, power generated from these sources wilVBd&-exempt, and facilities

to be used or imported will also have tax incergive

Laws on QOil PollutionTo address issues on marine pollution and oil apd) the

MARINA mandated the use of double-hull vesselstfansporting black products
beginning end-2008 and by January 2012 for whibelyets.
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Petron has been using double-hull vessels in taatisg all black products and
some white products already.

Clean Air Act. Petron invested in a Gasoil Hydrotreater Plant amdan
Isomerization Plant to enable it to produce diesel gasoline compliant with the
standards set by law.

Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) BillThe LPG Act of 2009 aims to ensure safe
practices and quality standards and mitigate uefainpetition in the LPG sector.
LPG cylinder seal suppliers must obtain a licensé eertification of quality,
health and safety from the Department of Energyreethey are allowed to
operate. LPG cylinder requalifiers, repairers atrdgping centers, will also have
to obtain a license from the Department of Tradd andustry. The Bill also
imposes penalties on underfilling, underdeliverifiggal refilling and storage,
sale or distribution of LPG-filled cylinders withbseals, illegal possession of
LPG cylinder seal, hoarding, and importation of duse second-hand LPG
cylinders, refusal of inspection, and non-complatxstandards.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent firgal obligation that is material to
the company, including any default or acceleratban obligation.

Tax Credit Certificates Related Cases

In 1998, Petron contested before the Court of Tapeals (CTA), the
collection by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BtR)deficiency taxes
arising from the company’s acceptance and use »fCradit Certificates
(TCCs) worth P659 million from 1993-1997. The CT#led in favor of

Petron. The BIR then appealed the case to the ©bdppeals (CA) after
which the CA issued a resolution suspending detisiothe case until the
termination of the Department of Finance (DOF) stigation. Petron
filed a motion for reconsideration which remaingsigiaeg at the moment.

In May 2002, the BIR issued a collection letter tficiency taxes of
P254 million plus interest and charges for the yd£95-1998, as a result
of the cancellation of the Tax Debit Memos and T®gshe DOF Center
ExCom. Petron elevated the protest to the CTA. $beond Division
CTA denied Petron’s Petition for Review for lack roerit. Petron then
appealed the case with the CTA En Banc. On Dece1i#008, the CTA
En Banc promulgated a decision reversing the umédle decision of the
CTA 2nd Division. The CIR filed a Petition for Rew with the Supreme
Court where the case remains submitted for reswiuti

Pandacan Terminal Operations
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Citing concerns for safety, security and healtle, @ity of Manila passed
City Ordinance No. 8027 which reclassified the Revach Terminal from
industrial to commercial. Petron, together with thtéer oil companies
asked the Supreme Court to change the ruling simeeComprehensive
Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance N®@Biepealed the
Manila Ordinance No. 8027. Ordinance No. 8119 giPetron a seven-
year grace period to continue its operations inRhadacan Terminal. In
February 2008, the Supreme Court denied the oilpamyis motion for

reconsideration and declared Manila Ordinance N@278valid and

applicable to all oil terminals. The Court directde oil companies to
submit their relocation plans to the RTC within @ys to determine the
reasonableness of the time frame for relocationMby 2008, Petron,
Shell and Chevron submitted their Comprehensiveodagion Plan in

compliance with the February Resolution. The Paadaterminal is

strategically significant since it serves about 4@¥% the company’s
refinery output and 100% of the company’s lubrisangreases and
oxidized asphalt.

On May 28, 2009, Mayor Alfredo Lim of Manila appexl and signed
proposed Ordinance 7177 (which became OrdinanceBIN&¢) repealing
Ordinance No. 8027 and 8119 and allowing the caosetinstay of the oil
depots at Pandacan. Mayor Lim was reelected Maydvlanila in the
May 10, 2010 election.

On June 1, 2009, Social Justice Society officelexd fa petition for

prohibition against Mayor Lim before the Supremeuoseeking the
nullification of Ordinance 8187. On June 5, 2008nfer Mayor Lito

Atienza filed his own petition with the Supreme @aeeking to stop the
implementation of Ordinance 8187. The Court hagm@d the City to file

its comment but the Court did not issue a temporesiraining order. The
City filed its comment on August 13, 2009.

The main storage facility of Petron is locatedhst Pandacan Terminal.
Approximately 40% of Petron‘s total sales volumenm®ved through

Pandacan. To ensure steady supply and in ordeitigate the risks at the
Pandacan Terminal, the company's nearby depots amofds, Metro

Manila and in Rosario, Cavite can also distributedpcts to the areas
being served by the Pandacan terminal.

Petron believes that, given the prevailing law amdting jurisprudence,
the Supreme Court will uphold the validity of Ordite No. 8187.

As stated in the papers (Philippine Daily Inquirdune 28, 2010 issue),
and as confirmed during the management meeting0itD,2 Petron is
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looking at the Manila North Harbor as a possildeation for its depot
that will replace its facilities at the Pandacamrii@al. This is just one of
the sites that Petron is looking at for the trans$éould it be forced to
move out of Pandacan. According to SMC President @®0O, Mr.
Ramon Ang, moving Petron’s depot facilities to terth Harbor would
reduce the company’s handling costs by as muctO%s &hich may, in
turn, result in lower pump prices. Mr. Ang explanghat bringing oil to
Pandacan can only be done with barges as a rdstliedPasig River’s
shallow draught of only 3 meters. North Harbor,tba other hand, has
deep-water facilities which tankers can use diyectl

Based on SEC FORM 17-A filings of Petron, the camphas filed its
Manifestation on November 30, 2010 to inform thei®me Court that it
has decided to cease operation of its petroleumustcstorage facilities in
Pandacan, Manila within 5 years or not later thanudry 2016 due to
environmental issues and issues on the locatidineoterminal.

Petron’s operations at the Pandacan Terminal ewggbscaled down in
line with its commitment to have minimal operatidhere by 2014. The
company is already building storage capacitieslterrzative sites. These
storage facilities will support the expected growith demand for
petroleum products outside of Metro Manila anditiegeased production
under RMP-2.

Guimaras Case

Complaints for Violation of Sec. 28, Paragraph Selation to Section 4
of the Philippine CleakVater Act of 2004 (RA 9275) were filed against
Messrs. Nicasio I. Alcantara and Khalid D. Al-FagdaPetron’s former
Chairman and President, respectively, and the @aptad owner of M/T
Solar 1 on June 17, 2009, as a result of the iok $fom the said vessel
which sank on August 11, 2006.

The Respondents denied the allegations imputeahstghiem, as the same
accusation was already resolved and dismissed gy Riovincial
Prosecutor’s Office of Guimaras in a Resolutioreda¥larch 2, 2007.

On July 14, 2011, the Provincial Prosecutor’s @ffaf Guimaras issued a
Joint Resolution finding probable cause to indice towner and the
Captain of M/T Solar 1 and Messrs. Alcantara and Maddagh for

Violation of Section 28, Paragraph 5 in relationSection 4 of the Clean
Water Act of 2004.

Messrs. Alcantara and Faddagh filed their Motion Reconsideration
with the Provincial Prosecutor’s Office of Guimams August 1, 2011.
The Complainants filed their Reply and Suppleme@amment while
Messrs. Alcantara and Faddagh countered this wRe@ly with Motion

-56 -



for Inhibition. Both Motions for Reconsiderationdlnhibition have not
been resolved.

Petron did not hire or engaged the services oCyetain of M/T Solar 1 contrary
to the finding contained in the Marine Accident img Report of the Special
Marine Inquiry Board relied upon by the Prosecwddffice. In addition, under
Republic Act No. 9483, otherwise known as “The Bdllution Compensation
Act of 20077, it is the owner of the vessel, not ttharterer, that is liable for any
oil spill or pollution damage that may result frehe operation of the said vessel.
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Petron Corporation and Subsidiaries
Trade and Other Receivables
- September 30, 2011

(Amounts in Millions of Pesos)

Breakdown:

Accounts Receivable - Trade P 17,091

Accounts Receivable - Non-Trade 8,912
Total Accounts Receivable 26,003

AGING OF TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

Receivables 1-30 days P 14,465
31-60 days 2,339
61-90 days 617
Over go days 721
Total 18,142
Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,051
Accounts Receivable - Trade P 17,091
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Interim Financial Report as of September 30, 2011

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiald®ition and Performance

Financial Performance

2011 vs 2010

For the third quarter of 2011, Petron reported aiineome ofR 1.56 billion. Gross
revenues increased 8 67.03 billion as a result of high fuel prices. Compared to the
same period in 2010, both sales volume and netiecwere lower by 7% and 14%,
respectively.

The company noted a significant drop in earningsinduthe third quarter when
compared to the previous two quarters. The deelia® caused by weak demand brought
about by higher fuel prices and maggressive competition particularly in the retaitla
industrial sectors.

Variance- Fav (Unfav)

(In Million Pesos) Amt %

Sales 201,929 169,798 32,131 19
Cost of Goods Sold 183,638 156,479 | (27,159) 17)
Gross Margin 18,291 13,319 4,972 37
Selling and Administrative Expenses 5,177 4,414 (763) 17)
Non-operating Charges 3,001 1,834 (1,167) (64)
Net Income 7,600 5,347 2,253 42
EBITDA 15,727 11,234 4,493 40
Sales Volume (MB) 34,284 35,838 (1,554) 4)
Earnings per Share 0.73 0.52 0.21 40
Return on Sales (%) 3.8 3.1 0.7 23

Overall, for the first nine months of 2011, revengearged td? 201.93 billion while net
earnings amounted # 7.60 billion. Higher income can be attributed to the growth of
petrochemical sales which contributed ad@@5 billion earnings.

With the improved bottom linegarnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) of B 15.73 billionalso topped the B 11.23 billion level a year
earlier.

Earnings per shareincreased by 40% tB 0.73from B 0.52 of the previous year while
return on salesgrew from 3.1% t¢3.8%.

Major contributory factors are the following:
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Gross margin (GM) rose toR 18.29 billionfrom previous year’s B 13.32 billion. The
following account for the variance in gross margin:

¢ Sales volume as of September 20Ehded lower aB4.3MMB compared to last
year’'s 35.8MMB as current level of prices resulted 7% (2.16MMB) contraction
in the domestic market. Meanwhile, exports improbgd17% (0.62MMB). The
slowdown in local sales came from Diesel (1,233MBd Fuel Oil (1,774MB)
mitigated by the growth in LPG and Jet (880MB).

¢+ Net sales revenu@rew by 19% td® 201.93 billionfrom B 169.80 billion the year
before essentially due to the hike in averagersglfirice per liter (2011: B 36.13
vs. 2010: B 29.08) promptédy the 36% spike in regional MOPS prices (2011 Ave
- US$122.64/bbl vs. 2010 Ave - US$90.48/bbl), tereg by the B 2.33 average
appreciation of the peso versus the US dollar.

¢ Cost of Goods Sold (CGSyvent up toR 183.64 billionfrom last year’'s B 156.48
billion as the average cost per liter increase®®% (2011: B 32.88 vs 2010: B
26.94). Higher cost per liter was principally divethe 31% escalation in landed
cost of crude that formed part of the total cosg@dds sold (2011: US$ 104.08/bbl
vs 2010: US$ 79.37).

+ Refinery Operating Expenseswhich formed part of CGS rode B 4.12 billion
from B 3.71 billion during the same period last@aryeThis was attributed to
increased power consumption due to higher coskipmwratt-hour (2011: B 6.31 vs
2010: B 4.65) and higher maintenance and repairsegeral facilities. Employee
costs also moved up due largely to additional maxgp@omplement and payment
of signing bonus to rank-and-file employees.

é Selling and Administrative Expensesof B 5.18 billion exceeded last year’'s B 4.41
billion expenditures as newly built service statioresulted in increased rent and
depreciation. Materials and supplies also wentwgp td acquisition of LPG cylinders
while aggressive promotional activities accounted liigher advertising expenses.
With the surge in operating expenses despite tbhp dr volume,opex per liter of
volume sold grew from B 0.77 last yeaB®®.95this year.

é Net Financing Costs and Other Chargesose toB 3.00 billion from the B 1.84
billion level as of September 2010. The increasavierage borrowing level and rate
(2011:-P77.00 billion @ 5.8% vs. 2016: $9.00 billion @ 5.3%) resulted to higher
interest expense. Losses from US-dollar denomini@éensactions also contributed to
the increment. The increase was partly offsetheyimterest earned from advances to
Petron Corporation Employee Retirement Plan, mat&edarket gains on Embedded
Derivatives, and commodity hedging gains.
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2010 vs 2009

Variance- Fav (Unfav)

(In Million Pesos) Amt %

Sales 169,798 123,635 46,163 37
Cost of Goods Sold 156,479 111,620 | (44,859) (40)
Gross Margin 13,319 12,015 1,304 11
Selling and Administrative Expenses 4,414 4,116 (298) (7)
Non-operating Charges 1,835 3,261 1,426 44
Net Income 5,347 3,366 1,981 59
EBITDA 11,234 10,394 840 8
Sales Volume (MB) 35,838 32,324 3,514 11
Earnings per Share 0.52 0.36 0.16 44
Return on Sales (%) 3.1 2.7 0.40 15

Petron’s consolidatediet income for the first nine months of 2010 reach2d5.35
billion, up by =P1.98 billion from the=B.37 billion earnings posted during the same
period in 2009. The 59% improvement in the compatmpttom line was primarily
attributed to the combined effect of higher salelsime, better margins of petrochemical
products, lower interest expense and unrealizegignrexchange gains on outstanding
US$ loan with the continued appreciation of theippine peso versus the U.S. dollar.

In the third quarter of 2010, Petron posted a nefitpof 2 1.81 billion, 16% better than
the1.56 billion income reported in 2009 despite +h@. L billion drop in margin. The
deterioration in margin was more than offset byhbiginterest income and translation
gains versus translation losses in 2009.

On a year to date basesarnings before interest, taxes, depreciation andnortization
(EBITDA) of R 11.2 billion surpassed 2009 level by 8% or P0.8 billion.

Earnings per shareimproved toR 0.52 from £ 0.36 in 2009 whilereturn on sales
increased from 2.7% ®.1%.

Major contributory factors are the following:
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Gross margin (GM) grew by 11% td2 13.32 billion from prior year's=P12.02 billion.
The following accounted for the variance in grossgin:

¢ Sales volumereached35.8MMB, up by 11% from 32.3MMB in 2009 prompted
by higher diesel, fuel oil and petrochemical salBsesel sales rose due to volume
requirements of new builds while increase in fuelas triggered by heightened
operations of independent power producers. Alse,commercial operations of
BTX units which produce new petrochemical prodireszene and toluene started
only in April 2009.

¢+ Net salesrevenueof B 169.8 billionfor the first three quarters of 2010 exceeded
2009 level of =P123.6 billion by 37%, due to the combined effethmher
average selling price (2010: B 29.13 vO2B 23.48) and volume. Regional
MOPS prices increased from an average US$60.6##1)09 to US$80.45/bbl in
2010.

¢ Cost of Goods Sold (CGSkoared toR 156.48 billionfrom B 111.62 billion in
2009 as crude cost went up (2010: US$77.46 vs.:208$57.97). In 2010, 85% of
CGS was sourced from crude compared to 67% ofameperiod in 2009. Lower
crude consumption in 2009 was primarily due to tital plant shutdown in the
first few months of 2010.

+ Refinery Operating Expenseswhich formed part of CGS, totald3.71 billion
or 5% lower than 2009. The decline in expenseswaight about mainly by the
decrease in maintenance and repairs (M&R) and lodegpreciation expense.
M&R was higher in 2009 due to repairs of propertiamaged by the fire incident
and turnaround activities of some units. The r&éda¢however, was partly offset
by the increases in purchase utilities and materald supplies on account of
higher crude run.

é Selling & Administrative Expenses amounted toR 4.41 billion, 7% higher than
2009. Aggressive retail expansion, rental on SNfices and higher purchase of LPG
cylinders contributed to the rise in expenses. el®mwu, on apeso per liter basis
actual operating expense was lowerBa®.65 versus B 0.76 in 2009 primarily on
account of the 11% rise in sales volume.

é Net Financing Costs & Other Chargesdropped significantly from 2009 total of B
3.26 billionto £ 1.84 billion in 2010. Interest expense declined bB&2 million
attributed to favorable average borrowing rate B®L2% vs. 2009: 6.4%) despite the
increase in average borrowing level (2010: B Bl#n vs. 2009: B 56.3 billion). In
addition, higher interest income coupled with falme foreign exchange translation
on dollar-denominated loans largely contributeth®positive variance.
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Financial Position

September 2011 vs. December 2010

As of September 30, 201donsolidated resourcestood a® 170.96 billion,6% (B 9.14
billion) higher compared to end-December 2010 leveR 161.82 billion due to the
combined effects of the following:

Cash and cash equivalentsvere reduced by 54% t® 20.40 billion primarily to fund
working capital requirement (Inventories and Reablgs), capital expenditures and
other investments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Iesswas up by 42% from B 0.23 billion
to P 0.32 billion brought about by the strengthened fair value @ gtanding derivatives
partly offset by the decline in market value ofa@stments in marketable securities and
club membership shares.

Trade and other receivables-netose by 7% (R 1.74 billion) 8 26.00 billionfrom the
B 24.27 billion level in December 2010 attributem increased sales to industrial
customers.

Inventories grew significantly from B 28.15 billion td® 47.09 billion largely due to
higher crude price and volume.

Other current assetsof B 7.09 billion surpassedhe B 4.29 billion level as at year-end
of 2010 owing to higher Input VAT as a result oflmer purchase price of crude and
finished products.

The drop inAssets-held-for-salefrom B 0.82 billion toR 0.01 billion pertained to the

transfer of Petron Mega Plazaltovestment Propertieswhich surged toR 0.82 billion
from B 0.12 billion.
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Property, plant and equipment-netincreased by 23% from B 34.96 billion Ro42.98
billion due to various capital projects in the refinerytsas the Refinery Solid Fuel
Fired Power Plant and Refinery Master Plan 2, altitianal service stations.

Investment in associatesxlso increased from B 0.80 billion B1.32 billion with the
purchase of 35% interest in Manila North HarbourtHac.

Available-for-sale financial assetgcurrent and non-current) fell # 1.03 billion from
R 1.16 billion in December 2010 resulting from sks investments in government
securities and corporate bonds during the period.

Deferred tax assetset went up toR 170 million from B 28 million in 2010 due
essentially to the effect of unrealized profit freobsidiaries.

Short-term loans andliabilities for crude oil and petroleum product importations of
B 57.37 billionsurged by 31% (B 13.72 billion), an offshoot ajher crude and finished
product prices this year.

Derivative Liabilities of B 97 million more than tripled the B 30 million level as atlen
of December 2010 due to higher notional amountghtened by deteriorating fair value
of embedded derivative transactions.

Income tax payableballooned from B 14 million t& 532 million prompted by higher

taxable income during the nine-month period. Thecddgber 2010 taxable income
considered the net operating loss carry-over (NOLGDprior years. In addition, last
year’s tax due was reduced by the utilization aftpaars’ MCIT as against zero this
year.

Long-term debt inclusive of current portion went lower by 20% from B 54.40 billion
to B 43.28 billionwith the settlement of maturing loans.

Deferred tax liabilities-net of B 1.77 billion, showed &% reduction from the B 1.96
billion balance as at December 31, 2010 after cemsig the impact of temporary
differences in income tax computation.

Asset retirement obligationescalated by 8% (B 63 million) B878 million on account
of higher accretion rate.

Other non-current liabilities perked up by 15% ( B 93 million) 8 702 million with
the increase in cylinder deposit and cash bonds.

Total equity amounted td® 59.29 billion 11% higher than the B 53.34 billion level in
December 2010, traceable to tRer.58 billion income realized during the first nine
months of the year partly offset by cash dividemdsd to preferred and common
shareholders totaling 1.65 billion.
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September 2010 vs. December 2009

Petron closed the third quarter of 2010 wiibtal assetsof B 138.34 billion 22% or B
25.15 billion higher than end-December 2009 levé 413.19 billion.

Cash and cash equivalentancreased by 24% or B 3.07 billion B16.05 billion
principally due to the proceeds from loan availmsearid issuance of preferred shares.

Available for-sale investments(current and non-currentf B 1.20 billion declined by
11% or B 151 million on account of the maturityimfestment in government securities
of the local insurance subsidiary.

Trade and other receivables-netamounted toR 25.25 billion, 15% or B 4.45 billion
lower than the B 29.70 billion level as of DecemB1, 2009 mainly due to the drop in
government receivables as a result of significaitization of tax credit certificates.

Inventories-net went up toR 32.12 billionfrom B 28.17 billion as at end of 2009. The
R 3.95 billion increase was primarily attributen higher volume of both crude and
finished products. There were minimal purchaseBacember 2009 in anticipation of

the implementation of the ASEAN Trade in Goods Agnent (ATIGA) starting January

2010.

Other current assetsposted a 29% or B 1.31 billion reduction from.&7 billion toB
3.16 billion, essentially due to the filing of input VAT clairoa zero-rated sales.

Investment Properties of B 0.96 billion was four times higher than the B 0.23 billion
figure reported in December 2009 chiefly due totthesfer of the book value of Petron
Megaplaza Offices from Property, Plant and Equipnaecount.

Deferred tax assetsof B 15 million was twice as much from end-December 2009
balance of B 7 million due mainly to the effetttranslation adjustment of the foreign
insurance subsidiary.

Other non-current assetswere considerably higher &24.43 billion in 2010from B
1.33 billion in year-end 2009 primarily traced tvances to the retirement fund.

Short-term loans and liabilities for crude oil and petroleum product importations
went down by 9% (R 4.54 billion) ® 45.74 billionprincipally due to settlements made
countered by higher crude/finished products impimns.

Long-term debt inclusive of current portion showed a significant movement from B

18.89 billion toR 33.12 billion chiefly due to the newly-availed NORD loan amongti
to US$355 million partly reduced by amortizatiofi®otstanding loans.
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Income tax payableincreased t@® 14 million from B 10 million as at December 31,
2009 owing to higher tax liabilities reported b tsubsidiaries.

Deferred income tax liabilities-netat B 1.89 billion grew almost three-fold from B 514
million largely due to the impact of NOLCO as wali temporary differences reflected
under parent and subsidiaries’ accounts.

Other non-current liabilities rose by 10% or B 109 million ® 1.16 billion mainly due
to the increases in provision for Asset Retirem@btigation and cylinder/cash bond
deposits.

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent aggregated? 51.10 billionat
the end of third quarter 2010, showing a 37% d/B3B1 billion improvement over the
end-December 2009 level due to the combined edfiettte following:
é P 9.86 billionissuance of preferred shares, net of issue cost
é B 5.35 billion year-to-date net income partly reduced by En&.44 billion
dividends on common and preferred shares.

Cash Flow

Cash generated from operating activities was niwae tffset by the substantial increase
in inventories, thus, resulted in a net cash owtidd B 0.64 billion.

Cash outflows from investing activities were usedngrily in capital projects in the
refinery, construction of additional service stasp and investment in Manila North
Harbour Port, Inc.

Available cash was also used to pay-off maturiniggabons and dividends.

In Million Pesos Sept 30, 2011 | Sept 30,2010 | Change

Operating (outflows)/inflows (641) 20,691 2(,332)
Investing Outflows (13,057) (29,500) 16,443
Financing (outflows)/inflows (9,947) 11,935 (2382)

Discussion of the company’s key performance indicats:

Ratio Sept 30, 2011 Dec 31, 2010

Current Ratio 1.5 1.6
Debt to Equity Ratio 1.9 2.0




Return on Equity (%) 18.0 17.4
Debt Service Coverage 4.1 4.2
Tangible Net worth 59.3B 53.3B

Current Ratio Total current assets divided by total curreabilities. This ratio is a
rough indication of a company's ability to servitsecurrent obligations. Generally, the
higher the current ratio, the greater the "cushibatween current obligations and a
company's ability to pay them.

Debt to Equity Ratio Total liabilities divided by tangible net wortihis ratio expresses
the relationship between capital contributed bylitoes and that contributed by owners.
It expresses the degree of protection providedbyoivners for the creditors. The higher
the ratio, the greater the risk being assumed leglitmrs. A lower ratio generally
indicates greater long-term financial safety.

Return on Equity Net income divided by average total stockholdeggiity. This ratio
reveals how much profit a company earned in comsparito the total amount of
shareholder equity found on the statements of @i@uposition. A business that has a
high return on equity is more likely to be one tisatapable of generating cash internally.
For the most part, the higher a company’s returequity compared to its industry, the
better.

Debt Service CoverageFree cash flows add available closing cash lalativided by
projected debt service. This ratio shows the dksi available to pay for debt to the
total amount of debt payments to be made. It aleasures the company’s ability to
settle dividends, interests and other financinggés

Tangible Net Worth Net worth minus intangible assets. This figgiees a more
immediately realizable value of the company.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Revised Securities Act, the registrant has duly caused this report
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Corporate Secretary

Date: November 16, 2011
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Signature and Title
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